
 

Page 1 

 

 
AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Electoral Review Committee 

Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN 

Date: Wednesday 22 November 2023 

Time: 1.30 pm 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Lisa Alexander of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01722 434560 or email 
lisa.alexander@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines 01225 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Ashley O'Neill (Chairman) 
Cllr Gavin Grant (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 
Cllr Allison Bucknell 
Cllr Ernie Clark 
  

Cllr Jacqui Lay 
Cllr Ian McLennan 
Cllr Paul Oatway QPM 
Cllr Ian Thorn 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler 
 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Adrian Foster 
Cllr Peter Hutton 
Cllr Nic Puntis  

 

  
 

Cllr Ricky Rogers 
Cllr Derek Walters  

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By submitting a statement or question for a meeting you are consenting that you may be 
recorded presenting this and that in any case your name will be made available on the 
public record. The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.  
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
Parking 

 
To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
Our privacy policy is found here. 
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/democracy-privacy-policy


 

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

 Part I  

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2023. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements through the Chair. 

5   Public Participation  

 Statements 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 
3speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item. 
 
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further 
clarification. 
 
Questions 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on Wednesday 15 November 2023 in order to be guaranteed of a written 
response. In order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no 
later than 5pm on Friday 17 November 2023. Please contact the officer named 
on the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without 
notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

6   Polling District and Polling Place Review (Pages 9 - 220) 

 To receive a report from the Director, Legal and Governance. 

7   Parish Name Change Review (Pages 221 - 224) 



 

Page 4 

 

 To consider proposals to change the name of the parish of Lea & Cleverton. 

8   Date of the Next Meeting  

 To confirm the date of the next meeting as 13 December 2023. 

9   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter 
of urgency. 

 Part II  

 Items during consideration of which it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed. 



 
 
 

 
 
Electoral Review Committee 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 26 
SEPTEMBER 2023 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA 
ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
Cllr Ashley O'Neill (Chairman), Cllr Allison Bucknell and Cllr Ernie Clark 
 
Also Present: 
Cllr Jacqui Lay (Virtual), Cllr Ian McLennan (Virtual) 
  

 
37 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 

 Cllr Gavin Grant 

 Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 

 Cllr Paul Oatway 

 Cllr Ian Thorn  

 Cllr Ian McLennan (attending online non-voting) 

 Cllr Jacqui Lay (attending online non-voting) 
 

38 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 August 2023 were presented for 
consideration, and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes as a true and correct record.  
 

39 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

40 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

41 Public Participation 
 
No questions or statements were submitted. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

42 Polling District and Polling Place Review 
 
Caroline Rudland, Electoral Services Specialist Manager provided information 
on the upcoming Polling District and Polling Place Review, which would 
commence on 2 October 2023 if the Committee was in agreement.  
 
The aim of the review was to ensure the electoral arrangements for Wiltshire 
meet the needs of the electorate. The majority of polling district changes 
proposed in the review were rectifying some very small polling districts that 
were created as a result of Community Governance Reviews and the Unitary 
boundary changes in 2021.  
 
It was explained that all responses to the consultation on the review would be 
collated and assessed, would be reported to the Committee at its next meeting, 
and if changes were then approved the revised electoral register would be 
published on 1 December 2023. The consultation would seek the views of the 
public, key stakeholders, partners, and elected members. Any new community 
buildings which could be used in future elections would be a useful outcome. 
 
Details were provided on the consultation including paper copies available from 
council hubs, that representations were required to be published, and that 
people could phone and make a verbal representation. The consultation would 
run from 2 October to 31 October 2023, as set out in appendices A, B and C to 
the report included within the agenda. 
 
The importance of where people vote was discussed, and clarity was sought on 
whether the review encompassed changes from recent community governance 
reviews. It was explained where these were complete, they could be taken into 
account, however the most recent would take effect from May 2025, and in 
some cases had not received final consent for division changes, so minor 
adjustments would be made through a rolling programme of changes. There 
were also questions relating to updating all elected members and engaging with 
parish councils. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 

1) To authorise the Director, Legal and Governance, in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Electoral Review Committee, to carry out the consultation 
in accordance with the arrangements outlined in the report. 
 

2) To consider for approval at a future meeting, the final recommendations 
following the conclusion of the consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

43 Community Governance Review 2023/24 
 
The Democracy Manager and the Senior Democratic Services Officer provided 
verbal updates on the progress of the 2023/24 Community Governance Review. 
 
It was confirmed the terms of reference for the 2023/24 review was published 
on 11 September 2023. This listed the areas for review, the limited nature of the 
review in respect of North Bradley and Lacock, and the capability to include 
additional areas to correct minor anomalous boundaries which may be 
identified. A briefing note would be circulated shortly, and sessions arranged for 
potentially impacted parishes for the more significant proposals, and with 
unitary members.  
 
The Committee discussed the update, seeking clarity on local members being 
able to flag up any anomalous boundaries in their area, and confirmation that in 
many areas this might require subsequent electoral division changes, which 
was the responsibility of the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England. The Committee also reviewed the information sheets for each area, 
including details of currently received proposals and electorate information. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

44 Date of the Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 22 November 2023.  
 

45 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  1.30 - 2.15 pm) 
 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 

direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line 01225 713114 or email 
communications@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 7

mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Wiltshire Council 
 
Electoral Review Committee 
  
22 November 2023 

 
Polling District and Polling Place Review 2023 

Purpose 
 

1. The Committee is required to review the current polling districts and polling places by 
considering  

 The (Acting) Returning Officer ((A)RO) comments and initial 
proposals  

 The comments received during the consultation period  

 The (A)RO final recommendations.  
 
 

2. This information is provided in the following supporting documents:  
 

a. Appendix A – Overall report – Proposed polling arrangements following the 
public consultation  

b. Appendix B – Summary of responses and (A)RO recommendations.  
 

 

3. The committee must approve a final polling district and polling place scheme which 
will come into force from 1 December 2023 when the electoral register is revised.  
 
Background 

 
4. The Council is required by the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 to 

undertake a compulsory review of UK Parliamentary polling districts and polling 
places which must be started and completed between 1 October 2023 and 31 
January 2025 (inclusive). 

 

5. The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 amended the Representation 
of the People Act 1983 to require relevant authorities to undertake regular reviews of 
both polling districts and polling places within its area. The definitions between a 
district, place and station are: 

 

 A polling district is a geographical sub-division of an electoral area (an 
electoral area being a UK Parliamentary constituency, a European 
Parliamentary electoral region, a parish, parish ward or an electoral division). 

 A polling place is the building or area in which polling stations will be selected 
by the Returning Officer. A polling place within a polling district must be 
designated so that polling stations are within easy reach of all electors from 
across the polling district. 

 A polling station is the actual area where the process of voting takes place 
and must be located within the polling place designated for the particular 
polling district. The Returning Officer for the particular election must provide a 
sufficient number of polling stations and allocate the electors to those polling 
stations in such a manner as they think is the most convenient. 

   

6. Due to the geographical size of Wiltshire Council and the number of polling districts 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



to review, the reports and consultation have been categorised into unitary division 
areas for easier identification of locations and areas. 
 

Summary of the review proposals 
 

7. There are 98 Unitary Divisions in Wiltshire.  
 

Proposal  Number of Unitary Divisions 
affected  

Changes Proposed  61 

No Changes Proposed  37 

 
Public consultation  
 

8. The public consultation took place from 2 October to 31 October 2023. Copies of the 
public consultation document were available online, by request, and paper copies were 
available at libraries in each of the Parliamentary constituencies.  

 
9. Invitations to engage with the review were made in writing to:  

 

 Political Parties  

 Elected Representatives in Wiltshire  

 Groups identified as being under-represented by the Electoral Commission in 
elections  

 Organisations deemed to have an interest in the review (for example Parish 
Councils)  

 

10. The review was publicised and promoted in a variety of ways including a social media 
campaign, information to Area Boards, town and parish newsletters, Wiltshire 
Councillor newsletters, internal One Council newsletter, posters in Wiltshire libraries, 
press releases, Wiltshire Council website and Wiltshire Council residents e-newsletter. 
 

Consultation responses 
 

11. There were 53 representations received during the consultation process. All of the 
comments from the review can be found in Appendix A under the relevant Unitary 
Division for consideration. 
 

Page 10



12. The map below plots the areas of Wiltshire where the representations from the public 
consultation came from.  

 
 

13. Comments were received about 34 of the Unitary Divisions, 11 of which had no 
proposed changes, 23 of which had proposed changes.  
 

14.  A mixture of positive and constructive representations were made and while there 
were a cluster of responses received around Salisbury, otherwise the representations 
came from across the county.  
 

15.  Seven representations confirmed that electors were happy with the polling stations 
they vote at.  

 
Source of representations 
 

16. The majority of responses (72%) were from 
individual electors.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Proposals for approval: 
 

17.  There are 3 categories for the Committee to consider for approval:  
 

a. Unitary Divisions where no changes were proposed to polling districts and 
there are no relevant comments to be considered from the public 
consultation. Any proposed changes in this category relate to polling 
stations only. 

b. Unitary Divisions where changes were proposed to the polling districts 
c. Particular consideration and discussion to be given to the two Unitary 

Divisions of Sherston and Warminster North & Rural  
 

18. A list of the Unitary Divisions which fall under these 3 categories is provided below. A 
summary table in Appendix B is also provided which includes the Responses from 
the (Acting) Returning Officer to the public consultation comments.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A  Unitary Divisions where no polling district changes were proposed: 
(44 Unitary Divisions)  
 

Reference    Ward  Changes?  Comments?  

1 Aldbourne & Ramsbury 
 No proposed 

changes 
Comments received  

3 Amesbury East & Bulford 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

8 Box & Colerne 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

11 Brinkworth  Proposed Changes 
 Comments 

received  

13 By Brook 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

14 Calne Central 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

15 Calne Chilvester & Abberd  Proposed Changes 
 Comments 

received  

18 Calne South 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

Page 12



20 
Chippenham Cepen Park & Hunters 
Moon 

No proposed 
changes 

 No comments 
received 

23 Chippenham Lowden & Rowden  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

27 Corsham Ladbrook 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

33 Devizes Rural West  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

35 Downton & Ebble Valley 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

36 Durrington 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

37 Ethandune  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

38 Fovant & Chalke Valley  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

39 Hilperton 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

40 Holt 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

41 Kington 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

43 Ludgershall North & Rural 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

44 Lyneham 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

45 Malmesbury 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

52 Melksham Without West & Rural 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

53 Mere 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

54 Minety 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

55 Nadder Valley  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

Page 13



57 Pewsey 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

62 Royal Wootton Bassett East 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

63 Royal Wootton Bassett North 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

64 
Royal Wootton Bassett South & 
West 

 No proposed 
changes 

 No comments 
received 

67 Salisbury Harnham East 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

71 Salisbury St Francis & Stratford 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

72 Salisbury St Paul`s 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

74 Southwick 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

75 The Lavingtons 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

76 Tidworth East & Ludgershall South 
No proposed 

Changes 
 Comments 

received  

78 Till Valley 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

79 Tisbury  Proposed Changes 
 Comments 

received  

84 Trowbridge Lambrok 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

86 Trowbridge Paxcroft 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

89 Warminster East 
 No proposed 

changes 
 No comments 

received 

92 Westbury East 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

96 Winsley & Westwood 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

98 Wylye Valley 
 No proposed 

changes 
 Comments 

received  

 

 

Page 14



 

 

 

  

Page 15



B       Unitary Divisions where changes were proposed to the polling districts 
(52 Unitary Divisions)  
 

Reference    Ward  Changes?  Comments?  

2 Alderbury & Whiteparish  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

4 Amesbury South  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

5 Amesbury West  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

6 Avon Valley  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

7 Bowerhill  Proposed Changes Comments received  

9 Bradford-on-Avon North   Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

10 Bradford-on-Avon South   Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

12 
Bromham Rowde & 
Roundway 

 Proposed changes 
No comments 

received  

16 Calne North  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

17 Calne Rural  No proposed changes  Comments received  

19 
Chippenham Cepen Park & 
Derriads 

 Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

21 Chippenham Hardenhuish  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

22 
Chippenham Hardens & 
Central 

 Proposed Changes  Comments received  

24 Chippenham Monkton  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

25 Chippenham Pewsham  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

26 Chippenham Sheldon  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

Page 16



28 Corsham Pickwick  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

29 Corsham Without  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

30 Cricklade & Latton  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

31 Devizes East  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

32 Devizes North  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

34 Devizes South  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

42 Laverstock  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

46 Marlborough East  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

47 Marlborough West  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

48 Melksham East  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

49 Melksham Forest  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

50 Melksham South  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

51 
Melksham Without North & 
Shurnhold 

 Proposed Changes  Comments received  

56 
Old Sarum & Lower Bourne 
Valley 

 Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

58 Pewsey Vale East  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

59 Pewsey Vale West  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

60 Purton  Proposed Changes  Comments received 

61 Redlynch & Landford  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

Page 17



65 Salisbury Bemerton Heath  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

66 
Salisbury Fisherton & 
Bemerton Village 

 Proposed Changes  Comments received  

68 Salisbury Harnham West  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

69 Salisbury Milford  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

70 Salisbury St Edmund`s  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

77 Tidworth North & West  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

80 Trowbridge Adcroft  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

81 Trowbridge Central  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

82 Trowbridge Drynham  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

83 Trowbridge Grove  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

85 Trowbridge Park  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

87 Urchfont & Bishops Cannings  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

88 Warminster Broadway  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

91 Warminster West  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

93 Westbury North  Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 

94 Westbury West  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

95 Wilton  Proposed Changes  Comments received  

97 
Winterslow & Upper Bourne 
Valley 

 Proposed Changes 
 No comments 

received 
 

 

 

Page 18



C      Particular consideration and discussion to be given to the 2 Unitary Divisions 
Warminster North & Rural and Sherston  
(2 Unitary Divisions)  
 

Reference    Ward  Changes?  Comments?  

73 Sherston  Proposed Changes 
 Comments 

received  

90 Warminster North & Rural  Proposed Changes 
 Comments 

received  

 
Sherston 
 

19. The Committee is asked to consider the electoral arrangements for the Sherston 
Unitary Division taking into consideration the comments received from the public 
consultation and the (A)RO response. 

 
20. The parish of Luckington currently comprises of two polling districts OO1 and OP1. The 

electorate of OO1 is 83 and the electorate of OP1 is 439 electors. Each polling district 
currently has a polling station venue.  

 
21. The (A)RO proposed that the two polling districts are merged into one for the whole 

parish and that Luckington Village Hall is the designated polling station. Whilst the 
polling station for OO1 is convenient for their 83 electors, Luckington Village Hall is 
situated centrally within the Parish. The two Village Halls are approximately 1.1 miles 
away from each other.  

 
22. One response to the public consultation was received for this parish where they have asked 

for the polling station for OO1 to remain and the polling districts not to merge. The Committee 
is asked to consider the (A)RO recommendation from the review or keep the current electoral 
arrangements as per the response from the public consultation 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

  

Page 20



Warminster North & Rural  
 
23. The Committee is asked to consider the electoral arrangements for the Warminster North & 

Rural Unitary Division taking into consideration the comments received from the public 
consultation and the (A)RO response.  

 
24. The minor boundary change proposal between IC1 and IC2 has been revoked from the 

review as it is deemed to be unnecessary.  
 

25. The Committee is asked to consider the suggestion from the review that it is not preferable 
for electors voting in IC2 to vote in person at the Warminster Garrison. The consequence of 
this would mean the Committee allowing a polling place outside of the Unitary Division. The 
(A)RO recommends that if this is the decision of the Committee that the polling station 
would be Warminster Civic Centre.  

 
 

 
  

Page 21



 
Final recommendations for approval: 
 

26. The Committee is asked to approve:  
 

 The Unitary Divisions where no changes were proposed to polling districts and there are no 
relevant comments to be considered from the public consultation. Any proposed changes in 
this category relate to polling stations only. 

 The Unitary Divisions where changes were proposed to the polling districts 

 The outcome for the Unitary Division of Sherston  

 The outcome for the Unitary Division of Warminster North & Rural  
 
Perry Holmes 
Director, Legal and Governance 
  
Report Author: Caroline Rudland caroline.rudland@wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Appendices 
Appendix A – Overall report 
Appendix B – Summary of proposals including (A)RO Comments  

Page 22

mailto:caroline.rudland@wiltshire.gov.uk


1 
 

Wiltshire Council  - Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2023 

Current polling arrangements, (Acting) Returning Officer comments and proposed changes 
 

This document contains the current and proposed electoral arrangements for Wiltshire, including comments from the public 

consultation and the decision of the (A)RO as a result of information from the public if necessary.  

This document can be read in conjunction with the summary spreadsheet in order to easily find the Unitary Divisions where the (A)RO 

has made additional comments or changes in response to the representations made during the public consultation.  

 

 

Contents 

Current polling arrangements, (Acting) Returning Officer comments and proposed changes ....................................................................................... 1 

1 Aldbourne & Ramsbury – No proposed changes – Comments received ...................................................................................................... 7 

2 Alderbury & Whiteparish – Proposed Changes – No Comments ................................................................................................................... 9 

3 Amesbury East & Bulford – No proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................................ 11 

4 Amesbury South – Proposed changes – No comments received................................................................................................................. 13 

5 Amesbury West – Proposed changes – No comments received .................................................................................................................. 14 

6 Avon Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received ......................................................................................................................... 15 

7 Bowerhill – Proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................................................... 17 

8 Box & Colerne – No proposed changes – No comments received............................................................................................................... 19 

9 Bradford-on-Avon North – Proposed changes – No comments received .................................................................................................... 20 

10 Bradford-on-Avon South – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................ 22 

P
age 23



2 
 

11 Brinkworth – Proposed changes – Comments received ............................................................................................................................. 24 

12 Bromham, Rowde & Roundway – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................... 26 

13 By Brook – No proposed changes – No comments received ..................................................................................................................... 28 

14 Calne Central – No proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................................................ 30 

15 Calne Chilvester & Abberd – Proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................. 31 

16 Calne North – Proposed changes – No comments received ..................................................................................................................... 33 

17 Calne Rural – No proposed changes – Comments received ..................................................................................................................... 34 

18 Calne South – No proposed changes – Comments received .................................................................................................................... 36 

19 Chippenham Cepen Park & Derriads – Proposed changes – No comments received .......................................................................... 38 

20 Chippenham Cepen Park & Hunters Moon – No proposed changes – No comments received .......................................................... 40 

21 Chippenham Hardenhuish – Proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................................ 42 

22 Chippenham Hardens & Central – Proposed changes – Comments received ....................................................................................... 44 

23 Chippenham Lowden & Rowden – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................. 46 

24 Chippenham Monkton – Proposed changes – No comments received .................................................................................................... 47 

25 Chippenham Pewsham – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................. 48 

26 Chippenham Sheldon – Proposed changes – No comments received .................................................................................................... 50 

27 Corsham Ladbrook – No proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................... 51 

28 Corsham Pickwick – Proposed changes – Comments received ............................................................................................................... 52 

29 Corsham Without – Proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................................. 54 

30 Cricklade & Latton – Proposed changes – Comments received ............................................................................................................... 57 

31 Devizes East – Proposed changes – Comments received ......................................................................................................................... 59 

32 Devizes North – Proposed changes – No comments received .................................................................................................................. 60 

P
age 24



3 
 

33 Devizes Rural West – Proposed changes – No comments received ........................................................................................................ 61 

34 Devizes South – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................................. 63 

35 Downton & Ebble Valley – No proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................ 64 

36 Durrington – No proposed changes – Comments received ........................................................................................................................ 66 

37 Ethandune – Proposed changes – No comments received ....................................................................................................................... 67 

38 Fovant & Chalke Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................. 69 

39 Hilperton – No proposed changes – No comments received ..................................................................................................................... 72 

40 Holt – No proposed changes – No comments received .............................................................................................................................. 73 

41 Kington – No proposed changes – No comments received ....................................................................................................................... 74 

42 Laverstock – Proposed changes – No comments received ....................................................................................................................... 76 

43 Ludgershall North & Rural – No proposed changes – No comments received ....................................................................................... 77 

44 Lyneham – No proposed changes – Comments received .......................................................................................................................... 79 

45 Malmesbury – No proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................................................... 81 

46 Marlborough East – Proposed changes – No comments received ........................................................................................................... 82 

47 Marlborough West – Proposed changes – Comments received ............................................................................................................... 84 

48 Melksham East – Proposed changes – Comments received ..................................................................................................................... 86 

49 Melksham Forest – Propsosed change – Comments received ................................................................................................................. 88 

50 Melksham South – Proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................................................. 90 

51 Melksham Without North & Shurnhold – Proposed changes – Comments received ............................................................................. 92 

52 Melksham Without West & Rural – No proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................. 94 

53 Mere – No proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................................................................ 97 

54 Minety – No proposed changes – No comments received ......................................................................................................................... 98 

P
age 25



4 
 

55 Nadder Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received .................................................................................................................. 99 

56 Old Sarum & Lower Bourne Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................ 101 

57 Pewsey – No proposed changes – Comments received .......................................................................................................................... 102 

58 Pewsey Vale East – Proposed changes – No comments received ......................................................................................................... 104 

59 Pewsey Vale West – Proposed changes – Comments received ............................................................................................................. 106 

60 Purton – Proposed changes – Comments received .................................................................................................................................. 109 

61 Redlynch & Landford – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................... 111 

62 Royal Wootton Bassett East – No proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................. 113 

63 Royal Wootton Bassett North – No proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................... 114 

64 Royal Wootton Bassett South & West – No proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................. 115 

65 Salisbury Bemerton Heath – Proposed changes – No comments received .......................................................................................... 117 

66 Salisbury Fisherton & Bemerton Village – Proposed changes – Comments received ........................................................................ 118 

67 Salisbury Harnham East – No proposed changes – No comments received ........................................................................................ 120 

68 Salisbury Harnham West – Proposed changes – Comments received .................................................................................................. 121 

69 Salisbury Milford – Proposed changes – No comments received ........................................................................................................... 123 

70 Salisbury St Edmund`s – Proposed changes – Comments received ..................................................................................................... 124 

71 Salisbury St Francis & Stratford – No proposed changes – No comments received ........................................................................... 125 

72 Salisbury St Paul`s – No proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................. 126 

73 Sherston – Proposed changes – Comments received .............................................................................................................................. 127 

74 Southwick – No proposed changes – Comments received ...................................................................................................................... 130 

75 The Lavingtons – No proposed changes – No comments received........................................................................................................ 131 

76 Tidworth East & Ludgershall South – No proposed changes – Comments received ........................................................................... 132 

P
age 26



5 
 

77 Tidworth North & West – Proposed changes – No comments ................................................................................................................. 134 

78 Till Valley – No proposed changes – No comments ................................................................................................................................... 135 

79 Tisbury – Proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................................................. 137 

80 Trowbridge Adcroft – Proposed changes – No comments received ....................................................................................................... 139 

81 Trowbridge Central – Proposed changes – No comments received ....................................................................................................... 141 

82 Trowbridge Drynham – Proposed changes – No comments received ................................................................................................... 142 

83 Trowbridge Grove – Proposed changes – Comments received .............................................................................................................. 144 

84 Trowbridge Lambrok – No proposed changes – No comments received .............................................................................................. 146 

85 Trowbridge Park – Proposed changes – No comments received............................................................................................................ 147 

86 Trowbridge Paxcroft – No proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................................... 148 

87 Urchfont & Bishops Cannings – Proposed changes – No comments received .................................................................................... 150 

88 Warminster Broadway – Proposed changes – No comments received.................................................................................................. 152 

89 Warminster East – No proposed changes – No comments received ..................................................................................................... 153 

90 Warminster North & Rural – Proposed changes – comments received ................................................................................................. 154 

91 Warminster West – Proposed changes – No comments received .......................................................................................................... 156 

92 Westbury East – No proposed changes – Comment received ................................................................................................................ 157 

93 Westbury North – Proposed changes – Comments received .................................................................................................................. 159 

94 Westbury West – Proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................................... 161 

95 Wilton – Proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................................................... 163 

96 Winsley & Westwood – No proposed changes – Comments received ................................................................................................... 165 

97 Winterslow & Upper Bourne Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received ............................................................................ 167 

98 Wylye Valley – No proposed changes – Comments received .................................................................................................................. 169 

P
age 27



6 
 

99 Appendix A ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 171 

100 Appendix B (Wilcot, Huish & Oare) ............................................................................................................................................................... 177 

101 Appendix C (Wiltshire County) ........................................................................................................................................................................... 178 

102 Appendix D (Warminster North & Rural) ........................................................................................................................................................... 179 

103 Appendix E (Harnham West) .............................................................................................................................................................................. 179 

104 Appendix F (Westbury) ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 180 

105 Appendix F (Pewsey Vale West) G ...................................................................................................................................................................... 180 

106 Appendix G (Purton) H........................................................................................................................................................................................ 180 

 

 

  

P
age 28



7 
 

1 Aldbourne & Ramsbury – No proposed changes – Comments received 

 

Electorate       4419 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SA1 Aldbourne 
Methodist Church Lottage Road, 
Aldbourne, Wiltshire, SN8 2DL 

No  
 

SE1 Baydon 
Baydon Young Peoples Hall Baydon, 

Marlborough, Wiltshire,  SN8 2JE 
No  

 

TA1 Chilton Foliat 
Chilton Foliat Village Hall Chilton Foliat, 

Hungerford, Wiltshire, RG17 0TG 
No  

 

XD1 
Ogbourne St. 

Andrew 

Ogbourne St George Village Hall 
Ogbourne St. George, Liddiards Green, 

Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 1SP 
No  

 

XE1 
Ogbourne St. 

George 

Ogbourne St George Village Hall 
Ogbourne St. George, Liddiards Green, 

Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 1SP 
No  

 

XJ1 
Ramsbury 

(Ramsbury Ward)  

Ramsbury Memorial Hall High Street, 
Ramsbury, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 

2PB 

 
No 

 
 

P
age 29



8 
 

XK1 
Ramsbury (Axford 

Ward) 

Ramsbury Memorial Hall High Street, 
Ramsbury, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 

2PB 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review  

 Elector in SN8 2DD  
Very happy with the polling station in Methodist Hall (SA1)  

 Elector in SN8 2DD  
I think the Methodist Hall works perfectly. Nearly everyone in the village can walk to it because it is centrally situated and 
there is plenty of room inside.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 30



9 
 

2 Alderbury & Whiteparish – Proposed Changes – No Comments  

 

Electorate       4485 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 
Proposed 

Polling District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AA Alderbury  
Alderbury Village Hall Rectory Road, 
Alderbury, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP5 

3AD 
Yes1  

 

AB Alderbury   
Alderbury Village Hall Rectory Road, 
Alderbury, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP5 

3AD 
Yes1  

 

BB1 
Grimstead (East 
Grimstead Ward)  

East Grimstead Reading Room East 
Grimstead, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 

3RT 
No  

 

BB2 
Grimstead (West 
Grimstead Ward)  

West Grimstead Village Hall Church 
Street, West Grimstead, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP5 3RE 
No  

 

BM1 
Pitton & Farley 
(Pitton Ward)  

Farley Village Hall Church Road, 
Farley, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 1AH 

No  
 

BM2 
Pitton & Farley 
(Pitton Ward)  

Pitton Village Hall Pitton, Salisbury, 
Wiltshire, SP5 1DY 

No  
 

P
age 31



10 
 

DF West Dean 
King Georges Hall West Dean, 
Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 1JA 

No  
 

DG1 Whiteparish   
Whiteparish Memorial Centre 

Common Road, Whiteparish, SP5 
2SU 

Yes2  
 

DG2 Whiteparish  
Whiteparish Memorial Centre 

Common Road, Whiteparish, SP5 
2SU 

Yes2  
 

DT Clarendon Park 
Alderbury Village Hall Rectory Road, 
Alderbury, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP5 

3AD 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change between AA and AB to better apportion electors across the polling districts.  
2 Polling Districts DG1 and DG2 merge. The electorate of DG1 is 1208 and the electorate of DG2 is 35 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district DG to 1243. New polling district to be named DG1. 
3 Comments welcomed on polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 32



11 
 

3 Amesbury East & Bulford – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4155 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AL Bulford   
Bulford Village Hall Watergate Lane, 

Bulford, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 9DY 
No  

 

AM Bulford   
Bulford Village Hall Watergate Lane, 

Bulford, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 9DY 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

 

 

Amesbury East & Bulford continued on the next page.  

 

 

 

P
age 33



12 
 

 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AE1 
Amesbury 

(Amesbury East 
Ward)  

Amesbury Baptist Centre Butterfield Drive, 
Amesbury, Wiltshire SP4 7SN 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
     1     No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 34



13 
 

4 Amesbury South – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3651 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AE2 
Amesbury 

(Amesbury South 
Ward)  

Bowman Centre Shears Drive, Archers 
Gate, Amesbury, Wiltshire, SP4 7XT 

Yes1  
 

AE3 
 Amesbury 

(Amesbury South 
Ward) 

Bowman Centre Shears Drive, Archers 
Gate, Amesbury, Wiltshire, SP4 7XT 

Yes1  
 

AE4 Amesbury 
New Polling District. Polling Station to be 

decided under the 2023 review. 
Yes1 

Bowman Centre Shears Drive, 
Archers Gate, Amesbury, Wiltshire, 

SP4 7XT 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 New Polling District AE4 to be created from AE2 and AE3 to reduce the electorate of the polling districts in Amesbury South 

and account for new development in the area.  
2 Comments welcomed on polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 35



14 
 

5 Amesbury West – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4198 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place for AD1 and AD2 will be the whole of the unitary division. In the absence of suitable venues within the division, 

Amesbury Baptist Church is to be used as polling station. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  

The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or 

polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AD1 
Amesbury 

(Amesbury West 
Ward)  

Antrobus House 39 Salisbury Road, 
Amesbury, Nr Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 

7HH 
Yes1  

 

AD2 
Amesbury 

(Amesbury West 
Ward)  

Antrobus House 39 Salisbury Road, 
Amesbury, Nr Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 

7HH 
Yes1  

 

AD3 
Amesbury 

(Amesbury West 
Ward) 

Amesbury Baptist Centre Butterfield Drive, 
Amesbury, Wiltshire SP4 7SN2 

Yes1  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary changes to better apportion electors across the polling districts.  
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Amesbury Baptist Church is to be used as polling station and polling 

place for AD3. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  

3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 36



15 
 

6 Avon Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4034 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AV 
Durrington (Larkhill 

Ward) 

Larkhill Community Centre Willoughby 
Road, Larkhill, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP4 

8DG 

Yes1  
 

AW 
Durrington (Larkhill 

Ward) 

Larkhill Community Centre Willoughby 
Road, Larkhill, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP4 

8DG 

Yes1  
 

AY Figheldean 
Figheldean Village Hall Figheldean, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 8JR 
No  

 

BH Milston 
Brigmerston Village Hall Brigmerston, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP4 8JA 
No  

 

VC1 
Enford (Enford 
South Ward) 

Enford Village Hall Recreation Ground, 
Enford, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 6DD 

No  
 

VC2 
Enford (Enford 
North Ward) 

Enford Village Hall Recreation Ground, 
Enford, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 6DD 

No  
 

P
age 37



16 
 

VG1 
Fittleton cum 

Haxton 
Phoenix Hall Netheravon, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP4 9PJ 
No  

 

XA1 Netheravon 
Phoenix Hall Netheravon, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP4 9PJ 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Boundary change between AV and AW to better apportion electors across the polling districts 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 38



17 
 

7 Bowerhill – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3364 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FW1 
Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 

Bowerhill Ward) 

Melksham Football Club Oakfields 
Stadium, Eastern Way, Melksham, 

Wiltshire, SN12 7GU 

Yes1  
 

FW2 
Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 

Bowerhill Ward) 

Melksham Football Club Oakfields 
Stadium, Eastern Way, Melksham, 

Wiltshire, SN12 7GU 

Yes1 
 

 

FW3 
Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 

Bowerhill Ward) 

Bowerhill Village Hall Halifax Road, 
Bowerhill, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

6SN 
No  

 

FW4 
Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 

Bowerhill Ward) 

Bowerhill Village Hall Halifax Road, 
Bowerhill, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

6SN 

Yes2 
 

 

P
age 39



18 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts FW1 and FW2 merge. The electorate of FW1 is 142 and the electorate of FW2 is 174 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district FW1 to 316. New polling district to be named FW1. 
2 Polling district FW4 to be renamed as FW2. 
3 (Acting) Returning Officer Comments: welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in SN9 5LQ 
I live in Bowerhill and our polling station in the primary school is ideally placed for the catchment area thank you.   
 

 Elector in SN12 6XN  
Our polling station works a treat! (votes at Bowerhill Village Hall)  

 

P
age 40



19 
 

8 Box & Colerne – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3992 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MC1 Box (Box Ward) 
Selwyn Hall Valens Terrace, Box, 
Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 8NT 

No  
 

MC2 Box (Box Ward) 
Kingsdown Golf Club Committee Room, 

Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 8BS 
No  

 

NL1 Colerne 
Colerne Village Hall Martins Croft, 

Colerne, Wiltshire SN14 8DT 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
    1    No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. districts and polling stations in the     
area. 

 

 

P
age 41



20 
 

9 Bradford-on-Avon North – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3967 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EH1 
Bradford-on-Avon 
(Bradford-on-Avon 

North Ward)  

Mount Pleasant Centre 1A Mount 
Pleasant, Bradford On Avon, Wiltshire, 

BA15 1SJ 
No  

 

EH2 
Bradford-on-Avon 
(Bradford-on-Avon 

North Ward) 

Mount Pleasant Centre 1A Mount 
Pleasant, Bradford On Avon, Wiltshire, 

BA15 1SJ 
Yes1  

 

EH3 
Bradford-on-Avon 
(Bradford-on-Avon 

North Ward) 

Wiltshire Music Centre Ashley Road, 
Bradford On Avon, Wiltshire, BA15 1DZ 

No  

 

EH4 
Bradford-on-Avon 
(Bradford-on-Avon 

North Ward) 

Mount Pleasant Centre 1A Mount 
Pleasant, Bradford On Avon, Wiltshire, 

BA15 1SJ 
Yes1  

 

P
age 42



21 
 

EH5 
Bradford-on-Avon 
(Bradford-on-Avon 

North Ward) 

Bearfield Church Huntingdon Street, 
Bradford On Avon, Wiltshire, BA15 1RE 

Yes2  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts EH2 and EH4 merge. The electorate of is EH2 is 693 and the electorate of EH4 is 423 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district EH2 to 1116. New polling district to be named EH2. 
2 Polling District EH5 to be renamed EH4. 

3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 43



22 
 

10 Bradford-on-Avon South – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4066 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Propose
d 

Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EJ1 
Bradford-on-Avon 

(Bradford-on-Avon South 
Ward)  

Bradford on Avon Youth and Community 
Centre Frome Road, Bradford on Avon, 

Wiltshire, BA15 1LT 
Yes1  

 

EJ2 
Bradford-on-Avon 

(Bradford-on-Avon South 
Ward)  

St Margarets Hall Bradford on Avon, 
Wiltshire, BA15 1DE 

No  
 

EJ3 
Bradford-on-Avon 

(Bradford-on-Avon South 
Ward)  

Bradford on Avon Youth and Community 
Centre Frome Road, Bradford on Avon, 

Wiltshire, BA15 1LT 
Yes1  

 

EJ4 
Bradford-on-Avon 

(Bradford-on-Avon South 
Ward) 

Bradford on Avon Youth and Community 
Centre Frome Road, Bradford on Avon, 

Wiltshire, BA15 1LT 
Yes2  

 

P
age 44



23 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts EJ1 and EJ3 merge. The electorate of is EJ1 is 855 and the electorate of EJ3 is 629 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district EJ1 to 1484. New polling district to be named EJ1. 
2 Polling District EJ4 to be renamed EJ3 

3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 45



24 
 

11 Brinkworth – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3801 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MI1 Brinkworth 
Brinkworth Village Hall Main Hall The 

Street, Brinkworth, Chippenham, Wiltshire 
SN15 5AS 

No  
 

MX1 
Charlton (nr 
Malmesbury) 

Charlton Recreation Centre Charlton, 
Malmesbury, Wiltshire, SN16 9DL 

No  
 

NV1 Dauntsey 
Brinkworth Earl Danby`s Primary School 

The Green, Dauntsey, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire SN15 4HU1 

No 
Brinkworth Village Hall, The Street, 
Brinkworth, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 5AS1 

 

NX1 Great Somerford 
Walter Powell School Community Room, 
Great Somerford, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 5HS1 
No 

Little Somerford Village Hall 
Committee Room, Little Somerford, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 5JW2 

Existing Polling station to remain. 
See comments below   

 

OA1 Hankerton 
Hankerton Church North Aisle Community 
Area, Church Lane, Hankerton, Wiltshire, 

SN16 9LF 
No  

 

P
age 46



25 
 

OL1 
Lea & Cleverton 

(Lea Ward)  
Lea & Garsdon Village Hall Lea, 

Malmesbury, Wiltshire, SN16 9PG 
No  

 

OL2 
Lea & Cleverton 

(Garsdon & 
Cleverton Ward) 

Lea & Garsdon Village Hall Lea, 
Malmesbury, Wiltshire, SN16 9PG 

No  
 

ON1 Little Somerford 
Little Somerford Village Hall Committee 
Room, Little Somerford, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN15 5JW 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Wiltshire Council is aware of the impact of elections on schools. Brinkworth Village Hall was used as a polling station in May 

2021.  
2 Wiltshire Council is aware of the impact of elections on schools. Little Somerford Village Hall was used as a polling station in 

May 2021 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

 
Comments from the review  

 Elector in SN15 5 EL (Great Somerford)  
I want a polling station to remain in Great Somerford  
 

 Elector in SN15 5LA (Little Somerford)  
Little Somerford Village hall is the perfect place to have a polling station. It is accessible to all, reasonable cost and easy 
parking.  

 

 

Acting) Returning Officer Response  
NX1 has 736 electors. ON1 has 296 electors.  
Having reviewed the polling stations and comments from the review, the (A)RO would be satisfied to retain the existing polling 
station at Great Somerford, the Walter Powell School Community Room.  
The proposed change to NV1 will remain as no comments were received to the contrary.  
 

 

P
age 47



26 
 

12 Bromham, Rowde & Roundway – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3869 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division. The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SK1 Bromham 
Bromham Social Centre New Road, 

Bromham, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 
2JB3 

No  
 

XL1 
Devizes (Devizes 
Roundway Ward) 

Army Cadet Centre Le Marchant Barracks, 
Franklyn Road, (access also via Hambleton 

Avenue), Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 2FE2 
Yes1  

 

XL2 
Devizes (Devizes 
Roundway Ward) 

Army Cadet Centre Le Marchant Barracks, 
Franklyn Road, (access also via Hambleton 

Avenue), Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 2FE2 
Yes1  

 

XM1 Rowde 
Rowde Village Hall Cock Road, Rowde, 

Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 2PP 
No  

 

P
age 48



27 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts XL1 and XL2 merge. The electorate of is XL1 is 1345 and the electorate of XL2 is 7 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district XL1 to 1352. New polling district to be named XL1. 
2 The polling place for the updated Polling District XL1 will be the Army Cadet Centre.   
3 Polling station under reconstruction after a fire. Comments welcomed on temporary alternative venue.  
4 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 49



28 
 

13 By Brook – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3519 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MB1 
Biddestone and 
Slaughterford 

Biddestone Village Hall Yatton Road, 
Biddestone, Chippenham, Wiltshire SN14 

7BZ 
No  

 

MW1 Castle Combe 
Castle Combe Village Hall Estate Yard, 
Castle Combe, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN14 7HU 
No  

 

NY1 Grittleton 
Grittleton Village Hall Grittleton, 

Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 6AW 
No  

 

OD1 Hullavington 
Hullavington Village Hall Hill Hayes Lane, 

Hullavington, Chippenham, Wiltshire 
SN14 6EB 

No  
 

OY1 Nettleton 
Mount Zion Baptist Chapel West Kington, 

Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 7JQ 
No  

 

PA1 North Wraxall 
St James Church North Wraxall, 

Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 7AD 
No  

 

P
age 50



29 
 

PW1 Yatton Keynell 
The Barn Function Room The Bell Inn, 

The Street, Yatton Keynell, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN14 7BG 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1  No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 51



30 
 

14 Calne Central – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3756 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MO1 
Calne (Calne 
Central Ward)  

Calne Corn Exchange Town Hall, The 
Strand, Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 0EN 

No  
 

MO2 
Calne (Calne 
Central Ward) 

Coleman`s Farm Learning & Community 
Centre 15 & 16 Angell Close, Calne, 

Wiltshire SN11 8PF 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
    1    No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 52



31 
 

15 Calne Chilvester & Abberd – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3868 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

ML1 
Calne (Calne 
Chilvester & 

Abberd Ward)  

St Edmunds Catholic Parish Hall, Oxford 
Road, Calne, SN11 8AQ  

No 
Calne Corn Exchange, Town Hall, The 
Strand, Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 0EN 1 

 

ML2 
Calne (Calne 
Chilvester & 

Abberd Ward) 

Bremhill View Social Club Bremhill View, 
Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 9EE3 

No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling station change.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 
3 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Bremhill View Social Club to be used as polling station. The polling 

place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
 

 

P
age 53



32 
 

Comments from the review  

 Elected Official in  SN11 
Having fought a recent election campaign in the ward there were many comments after that the use of the Corn Exchange 
was illogical as it doesn’t sit within the ward. People are used to voting in the church on Oxford Road.  

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
 
St Edmunds Catholic Parish Hall is not a suitable venue to use as a polling station due to accessibility issues including steep steps 
inside the hall. The (A)RO acknowledges that the proposed polling station is outside of the unitary division there are no other 
suitable alternatives. Any suggested venues will be taken into consideration.  
 

 

P
age 54



33 
 

16 Calne North – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3699 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

MN1 
Calne (Calne North 

Ward)  
North Star Club Bremhill View, Calne, 

Wiltshire, SN11 9EE 
Yes1  

MN2 
Calne (Calne North 

Ward) 
North Star Club Bremhill View, Calne, 

Wiltshire, SN11 9EE 
Yes1  

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling district boundary change between MN1 and MN2 to better apportion electors across the polling districts.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

P
age 55



34 
 

17 Calne Rural – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4302 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MF1 
Bremhill (Bremhill 

Ward) 
Bremhill Village Hall Bremhill, Calne, 

Wiltshire, SN11 9LD 
No  

 

MG1 
Bremhill (East 

Tytherton Ward)  

Tytherton Village Hall The Green, East 
Tytherton, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 

4LR 
No 

Temporary change to Moravian 
Church Hall, East Tytherton until the 
new village hall is built. Construction 

currently underway. 

 

MH1 
Bremhill (Foxham 

Ward)  

Foxham Reading Room Village Hall & 
Free Library, Foxham, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire SN15 4NH 
No  

 

MQ1 
Calne Without 
(Calne Without 

East Ward)  

Cherhill Village Hall The Street, Cherhill, 
Calne, Wiltshire SN11 8XP 

No  
 

MU1 
Calne Without 
(Calne Without 

West Ward) 

Lansdowne Hall Petty Lane, Derry Hill, 
Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 9QY 

No  
 

P
age 56



35 
 

MY1 
Cherhill  (Cherhill 

Ward)  
Cherhill Village Hall The Street, Cherhill, 

Calne, Wiltshire SN11 8XP 
No  

 

MZ1 
Cherhill (Yatesbury 

Ward)  
John Stewart Hall, Yatesbury, Calne, 

Wiltshire, SN11 8YE 
No  

 

NA1 
Bremhill (Tytherton 

Lucas Ward)  

Tytherton Village Hall The Green, East 
Tytherton, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 

4LR 
No 

Temporary change to Moravian 
Church Hall, East Tytherton until the 
new village hall is built. Construction 

currently underway.   

 

NB1 
Calne Without 
(Calne Without 

Pewsham Ward)  

Lansdowne Hall Petty Lane, Derry Hill, 
Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 9QY 

No  
 

NM1 Compton Bassett 
Benson Hall Compton Bassett, Calne, 

Wiltshire SN11 8RD 
No  

 

OC1 Hilmarton 
Hilmarton Chapel Church Lane, 

Hilmarton, Calne, Wiltshire SN11 8SE 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
       1       No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review:  

 Please see Appendix A  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
The (ARO) is aware of the Community Governance Review and changes proposed for 2025 elections. A specific review of polling 
districts for the Calne Rural area will be conducted in 2024 as confirmation is pending from the LGBCE regarding the re-alignment 
of Unitary Division areas to make the boundaries coterminous.  

 

P
age 57



36 
 

18 Calne South – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3584 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MP1 
Calne (Calne 
South Ward) 

Marden House, New Road, Calne, SN11 
0JJ2 

No  
 

MP2 
Calne (Calne 
South Ward) 

Marden House New Road, Calne, SN11 
0JJ2 

No  
 

MT1 
Calne Without 
(Calne Without 
Middle Ward) 

Charles Willis Hall, Church Road, 
Heddington, Calne, Wiltshire SN11 0PJ 

No  
 

MT2 
Calne Without 
(Calne Without 
Middle Ward) 

Lansdowne Hall, Petty Lane, Derry Hill, 
Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 9QY 

No  
 

MV1 
Calne Without 
(Calne Without 

Sandy Lane Ward) 

Lansdowne Hall, Petty Lane, Derry Hill, 
Calne, Wiltshire, SN11 9QY 

No  
 

OB1 Heddington 
Charles Willis Hall, Church Road, 

Heddington, Calne, Wiltshire SN11 0PJ 
No  

 

P
age 58



37 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Marden House to be used as polling station. The polling place is 

outside of the Unitary Division.  
 

 

Comments from the review  

 Elector in SN11 0JY  
To move the polling station out of the division will reduce elector representation because people will not bother to go that far. 
Alternatives would be Holy Trinity Church or a temporary facility in Wessington cabins.  

 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
The comment received was not specific to a particular polling station. No changes were proposed for this division.  
As a result of the polling station visits conducted as part of this review, Marden House no longer wish to be available for use as a 
polling station. (A)RO will consider an alternative venue and will take into account the comments above.  

 

P
age 59



38 
 

19 Chippenham Cepen Park & Derriads – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3990 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QF1 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Cepen Park & 
Derriads Ward) 

St Peters Church Hall, Lords Mead, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0LL 

Yes1  

 

QF2 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Cepen Park & 
Derriads Ward) 

St Peters Church Hall, Lords Mead, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0LL 

Yes1 
 

 

QF3 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Cepen Park & 
Derriads Ward) 

St Peters Church Hall, Lords Mead, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0LL 

Yes1  

 

QF4 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Cepen Park & 
Derriads Ward) 

St Peters Church Hall, Lords Mead, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0LL 

Yes1  

 

P
age 60



39 
 

QF5 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Cepen Park & 
Derriads Ward) 

St Peters Church Hall, Lords Mead, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0LL 

Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Existing polling districts deleted. Replaced by 2 new polling districts. Polling Districts named QF1 and QF2 to better 

apportion the electors across the polling districts. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 61



40 
 

20 Chippenham Cepen Park & Hunters Moon – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3698 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be Lady Evangelical Church, SN14 0BA.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations 

are set out below:  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QD1 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham Cepen 
Park & Hunters Moon 

Ward) 

Ladyfield Evangelical Church, 
Hungerdown Lane, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN14 0BA 
No  

 

QD2 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham Cepen 
Park & Hunters Moon 

Ward) 

Ladyfield Evangelical Church, 
Hungerdown Lane, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN14 0BA 
No  

 

QD3 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham Cepen 
Park & Hunters Moon 

Ward) 

Ladyfield Evangelical Church, 
Hungerdown Lane, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN14 0BA 
No  

 

QD4 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham Cepen 
Park & Hunters Moon 

Ward) 

Ladyfield Evangelical Church, 
Hungerdown Lane, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN14 0BA 
No  

 

P
age 62



41 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Ladyfield Evangelical Church to be used as polling station. The polling 

place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 63



42 
 

21 Chippenham Hardenhuish – Proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3630 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QC1 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Hardenhuish 

Ward)  

Bowls Pavilion, John Coles Park, Ricardo 
Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire SN15 1PA 

Yes1  

 

QC2 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Hardenhuish 

Ward)   

St Paul's Church Hall Malmesbury Road, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1PS2 

Yes1  

 

QC3 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Hardenhuish 

Ward) 

St Paul's Church Hall Malmesbury Road, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1PS2 

Yes1  

 

QC4 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 
Hardenhuish 

Ward) 

New proposed polling district for 2023.2 Yes1 
St Paul's Church Hall, Malmesbury 

Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 
1PS3 

 

P
age 64



43 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Existing polling districts deleted. Replaced by 4 new polling districts. Polling Districts named QC1, QC2, QC3, and QC4 to 

better apportion the electors across the polling districts and allow for a new housing development.  
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, St Paul’s Church Hall to be used as polling station and polling place. 

The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
3 Polling station allocated to be St Paul’s Church Hall under the 2023 review. 

4 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 65



44 
 

22 Chippenham Hardens & Central – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3859 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QJ1 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Hardens & Central)  

Englands Social Centre Off Wood Lane, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 3EE 

Yes1  
 

QJ2 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Hardens & Central) 

Neeld Community and Arts Centre Town 
Hall, High Street, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 3ER 
No  

 

QJ3 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Hardens & Central) 

St Paul's Church Hall Malmesbury Road, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1PS 

No  
 

QJ4 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Hardens & Central) 

Englands Social Centre Off Wood Lane, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 3EE 

Yes1  
 

P
age 66



45 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts QJ1 and QJ4 merge. The electorate of is QJ1 is 1453 and the electorate of QJ4 is 2 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district QJ1 to 1455. New polling district to be named QJ1. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in  SN15 1PA 
Since changing Ricardo Road from Hardenhuish area to Hardens and Central we now have to go to the polling station at St 
Paul’s Church Hall in Malmesbury Road when there is a polling station in the bowling club on our road.  

  

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
The Unitary boundary changes in 2021 mean that Ricardo Road now falls under the Chippenham Harden & Central. Whilst 
appreciative of the comment that the Bowling Club is closer for this street, in order to keep the polling station within the unitary 
division and also convenient for other electors in QJ3 the polling station will remain at St Paul’s Church Hall.  

 

P
age 67



46 
 

23 Chippenham Lowden & Rowden – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       2566 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QA1 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Lowden & Rowden 
Ward)  

Scout Hut, Audley Road, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN14 0EN 

No 
Sheldon Road Methodist Church, 

Audley Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 
SN14 ODU2 

 

QA2 

Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Lowden & Rowden 
Ward) 

Neeld Community and Arts Centre Town 
Hall, High Street, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 3ER 
No1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Neeld Community and Arts Centre, SN15 3ER to be used as polling 

station and polling place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
2 Polling station change. In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Sheldon Road Methodist Church, Audley Road, 

Chippenham, SN14 0DU to be used as polling station and polling place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 68



47 
 

24 Chippenham Monkton – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       2202 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QH1 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Monkton Ward)  

St Paul's Church Hall, Malmesbury Road, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 1PS2 

Yes1  
 

QH2 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Monkton Ward) 

Wiltshire & Swindon History Centre 
Cocklebury Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire 

SN15 3QN 
Yes1  

 

QH3 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Monkton Ward) 

Wiltshire & Swindon History Centre 
Cocklebury Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire 

SN15 3QN 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts QH1, QH2 and QH3 merge. The electorate of is QH1 is 252, the electorate of QH2 is 1950 and there are no 

electors in QH3 bringing the total electorate for new polling district QH1 to 2202. New polling district to be named QH1.  
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Neeld Community and Arts Centre, SN15 3ER to be used as polling 

station and polling place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 69



48 
 

25 Chippenham Pewsham – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3670 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QB1 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Pewsham Ward)  

Pewsham Community Centre Association, 
Lodge Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 3SY 
Yes1  

 

QB2 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Pewsham Ward) 

Pewsham Community Centre Association, 
Lodge Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 3SY 
Yes2  

 

QB3 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Pewsham Ward) 

Pewsham Community Centre Association, 
Lodge Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 3SY 
Yes1  

 

QB4 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Pewsham Ward) 

Pewsham Community Centre Association, 
Lodge Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 3SY 
Yes2  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts QB1 and QB3 merge. The electorate of QB1 is 1713 and the electorate of QB3 is 19 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district QB1 to 1732. New polling district to be named QB1. 

 

P
age 70



49 
 

2 Polling Districts QB2 and QB4 merge. The electorate of QB2 is 1493 and the electorate of QB4 is 445 electors bringing 
the total electorate for new polling district QB2 to 1938. New polling district to be named QB2. 

3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 
 

P
age 71



50 
 

26 Chippenham Sheldon – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3878 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

QE1 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Sheldon Ward)  

Kingsley Road Community Hall, Kingsley 
Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0AS 

Yes1  
 

QE2 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Sheldon Ward) 

Kingsley Road Community Hall, Kingsley 
Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 0AS 

No  
 

QE3 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Sheldon Ward) 

Scout Hut, Audley Road, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN14 0EN 

No 
Sheldon Road Methodist Church, 

Audley Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 
SN14 ODU3 

 

QE4 
Chippenham 
(Chippenham 

Sheldon Ward) 

Scout Hut, Audley Road, Chippenham, 
Wiltshire, SN14 0EN 

Yes1 
Sheldon Road Methodist Church, 

Audley Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 
SN14 ODU3 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change between QE1 and QE4 to better apportion electors across the polling districts.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 
3 Polling station change  

 

P
age 72



51 
 

27 Corsham Ladbrook – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4057 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

NO1 
Corsham 
(Corsham 

Ladbrook Ward) 

Corsham Cricket Club Station Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 9EU 

No  
 

NO2 
Corsham 
(Corsham 

Ladbrook Ward) 

Springfield Campus Beechfield Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 9DN 

No  
 

NO3 
Corsham 
(Corsham 

Ladbrook Ward) 

Scout and Guide Centre The Laggar, 
Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 0DE 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
    1   Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 73



52 
 

28 Corsham Pickwick – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4057 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be Springfield Campus, SN1 39DN.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below:  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

NP1 
Corsham 

(Corsham Pickwick 
Ward) 

Potley Community Centre Pockeridge 
Road, Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 9SB 

Yes1 

Springfield Campus Beechfield Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 9DN2 

Change revoked, see comments 
below.  

 

NP2 
Corsham 

(Corsham Pickwick 
Ward) 

Springfield Campus Beechfield Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 9DN 

Yes1  
 

NP3 
Corsham 

(Corsham Pickwick 
Ward) 

Springfield Campus Beechfield Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 9DN 

Yes3  
 

NP4 
Corsham 

(Corsham Pickwick 
Ward) 

Springfield Campus Beechfield Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 9DN 

Yes3  
 

NP5 
Corsham 

(Corsham Pickwick 
Ward) 

Springfield Campus Beechfield Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 9DN 

Yes3  
 

P
age 74



53 
 

NP6 
Corsham 

(Corsham Pickwick 
Ward) 

Springfield Campus Beechfield Road, 
Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 9DN 

Yes3  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts NP1 and NP2 merge. The electorate of is NP1 is 340 and the electorate of NP2 is 1821 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district NP1 to 2161. New polling district to be named NP1. 
2 The new Polling District of NP1 will vote at Springfield Campus, SN13 9DN.  
3 Polling Districts NP3, NP4, NP5 and NP6 merge. The electorate of NP3 is 903, the electorate of NP4 is 69, the electorate of 

NP5 is 774 and the electorate of NP6 is 150 bringing the total electorate for polling district NP2 to 1896. New polling district 
to be named NP2.  

4 In the absence of suitable venues to be used as polling stations the polling place is outside of the Unitary Division 
5 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review  

 Organisation 
Corsham TC’s response to the consultation is that Potley Community Centre should be retained as a polling station to 
encourage those living nearby to vote. The alternative venue (Springfield Campus) is located a considerable distance away.  

 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
Following the response from the Town Council, the polling district NP1 will be retained and Potley Community Centre will remain 
the polling station. NP1 and NP2 will not merge. The existing NP1 will be re-named as NP3.  

 

P
age 75



54 
 

29 Corsham Without – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3748 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MD1 
Box (Box Rudloe 

Ward)  

Leafy Lane Playing Fields Pavilion Leafy 
Lane, Rudloe, Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 

0JY 
No  

 

NS2 
Corsham 

(Corsham Neston 
Ward)  

Neston Memorial Hall Pool Green, 
Neston, Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 9SN 

Yes1  
 

NS3 
Corsham 

(Corsham Neston 
Ward)  

Neston Memorial Hall Pool Green, 
Neston, Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 9SN 

Yes1  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Note that currently NS1, NS2 and NS3 straddle 2 Parliamentary Constituencies. Under the new Parliamentary Constituency 

boundaries NS1, NS2, and NS3 will be part of the Chippenham Constituency. Propose merge in the future after the new 
boundaries take effect.   

2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 
 
 

Corsham Without continued on the next page.  

P
age 76



55 
 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

 

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

NN1 
Corsham 

(Corsham Gastard 
Ward) 

Gastard Village Hall Velley Hill, Gastard, 
Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 9PU 

Yes1  
 

NR1 
Corsham 

(Corsham Gastard 
Ward) 

Gastard Village Hall Velley Hill, Gastard, 
Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 9PU 

Yes1  
 

NS1 
Corsham 

(Corsham Neston 
Ward) 

Neston Memorial Hall Pool Green, 
Neston, Corsham, Wiltshire, SN13 9SN 

Yes2  
 

OH1 Lacock 
Lacock Village Hall East Street, Lacock, 

Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 2LF 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts NN1 and NR1 merge. The electorate of is NN1 is 95 and the electorate of NR1 is 408 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district NN1 to 503. New polling district to be named NN1. 
2 Note that currently NS1, NS2 and NS3 straddle 2 Parliamentary Constituencies. Under the new Parliamentary Constituency 

boundaries NS1, NS2, and NS3 will be part of the Chippenham Constituency. Propose merge in the future after the new 
boundaries take effect.   

3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 77



56 
 

Comments from the review:  
 

 Elector in SN15 2NQ  
The village hall is fine for me to vote. (Votes at Lacock Village Hall OH1) 

 

 

  

P
age 78



57 
 

30 Cricklade & Latton – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4046 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

NT1 Cricklade 
Cricklade Town Hall High Street, 

Cricklade, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN6 6AE 
Yes1  

 

NT2 Cricklade 
Cricklade Town Hall High Street, 

Cricklade, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN6 6AE 
Yes1  

 

OK1 Latton 
Latton Village Hall Croft Lane, Latton, 

Swindon, Wiltshire, SN6 6DP 
No  

 

OW1 Marston Meysey 
Marston Meysey Village Hall Marston 

Meysey, Cricklade, Swindon, Wiltshire, 
SN6 6LQ 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change between NT1 and NT2 to better apportion electors across the polling district.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 79



58 
 

Comments from the review:  
 
Elector in SN6 6NF  
I can see that I am to fall under the South Cotswolds rather than North Wiltshire Constituency. How can I find out what this will 
mean to me as a voter?  
 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
The elector will be contacted with details of what the constituency change means outside of this review.  
 

 

P
age 80



59 
 

31 Devizes East – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4167 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

UA1 
Devizes (Devizes 

East Ward)  
Nursteed Centre Nursteed Road, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3AF 
Yes1  

 

UA2 
Devizes (Devizes 

East Ward) 
Wyvern Club 51 Church Walk, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3AA 
Yes1  

 

UA3 
Devizes (Devizes 

East Ward) 
Nursteed Centre Nursteed Road, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3AF 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 3 new polling districts. Polling Districts named UA1, UA2 and UA3 to 

better apportion the electors across the polling districts. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review :  

 Elector in SN10 3HF  
Nursteed Village – the present position is suitable and convenient for its purpose  

 

P
age 81



60 
 

32 Devizes North – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3276 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

UB1 
Devizes (Devizes 

North Ward)  
Cheese Hall Devizes Town Hall, St Johns 

Street, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 1BN 
Yes1  

 

UB2 
Devizes (Devizes 

North Ward) 
Cheese Hall Devizes Town Hall, St Johns 

Street, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 1BN 
Yes1  

 

UB3 
Devizes (Devizes 

North Ward) 
Cheese Hall Devizes Town Hall, St Johns 

Street, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 1BN 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 2 new polling districts. Polling Districts named UB1 and UB2  to better 

apportion the electors across the polling districts (Acting) Returning Officer Comments: welcomed on the polling districts and 
polling stations in the area. 

2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 82



61 
 

33 Devizes Rural West – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3551 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EM6 Bulkington 
Bulkington Village Hall Bulkington, 

Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 1SW 
No  

 

EV6 Coulston 
Coulston Village Hall Coulston, Westbury, 

Wiltshire, BA13 4NY 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

P
age 83



62 
 

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

VD1 Erlestoke 
The New Pavilion Witchcombe Lane, 

Great Cheverell, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 
5TH 

No 
Coulston Village Hall Coulston, 
Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 4NY1 

 

WO1 Marston 
Worton & Marston Village Hall Church 

Lane, Worton, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 
5SH 

No  
 

XG1 Potterne 
Potterne Village Hall Potterne, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 5ND 
No  

 

XH1 Poulshot 
Poulshot Parish Hall Poulshot, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 1RT 
No  

 

YB1 Seend 
Irene Usher Hall (Main Hall) Rusty Lane, 
Seend, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 6NR 

No  
 

ZL1 Worton 
Worton & Marston Village Hall Church 

Lane, Worton, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 
5SH 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling station change moving VD1 to Coulston Village Hall. Historically polling station was at the New Pavillion because 

of the parliamentary boundary. This moves the polling station within the new constituency and within the same unitary 
division.   

2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 84



63 
 

34 Devizes South – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

 

Electorate       3813 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

UC1 
Devizes (Devizes 

South Ward)  
Park Centre Hillworth Park, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 5HR 
Yes1  

 

UC2 
Devizes (Devizes 

South Ward) 
Park Centre Hillworth Park, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 5HR 
Yes1  

 

UC3 
Devizes (Devizes 

South Ward) 
Nursteed Centre Nursteed Road, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3AF2 
Yes1  

 

UC4 
Devizes (Devizes 

South Ward) 
Nursteed Centre Nursteed Road, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3AF2 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 3 new polling districts. Polling Districts named UC1, UC2 and UC3 to 

better apportion the electors across the polling districts. 
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Nursteed Centre, SN10 3AF to be used as polling station and polling 

place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 85



64 
 

35 Downton & Ebble Valley – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3945 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AJ Britford 
Britford Memorial Hall Britford, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire SP5 4DS 
No  

 

AQ Coombe Bissett 
Coombe Bissett & Homington Village Hall 
Shutts Lane, Coombe Bissett, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP5 4LU 
No  

 

AS 
Downton (Downton 

Ward) 
Memorial Hall Downton, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP5 3PD 
No  

 

AT 
Downton (Charlton 

Ward)  
Memorial Hall Downton, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP5 3PD 
No  

 

BK Odstock 
The Barker Room (near Nunton Church), 

Nunton, Wiltshire, SP5 4HP 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 86



65 
 

Comments from the review  

 Elector in SP5 4HZ (Baker Room)  
Seems like a good location.  

 

 

P
age 87



66 
 

36 Durrington – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3589 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AV1 
Durrington 

(Durrington Ward)  
Durrington Village Hall High Street, 

Durrington, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 8AD 
No  

 

AV2 
Durrington 

(Durrington Ward)  
Durrington Village Hall High Street, 

Durrington, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 8AD 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
     1    No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in SP4 8DQ  
Happy with current arrangements. (Votes at Durrington Village Hall).  

 

P
age 88



67 
 

37 Ethandune – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3649 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EK1 Bratton 
Jubilee Hall Bratton, Westbury, Wiltshire, 

BA13 4RW 
No  

 

ES1 Dilton Marsh 
Dilton Marsh Memorial Hall High Street, 
Dilton Marsh, Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 

4DW 
No  

 

EX1 Edington 
Edington Parish Hall Edington, Westbury, 

Wiltshire, BA13 4QH 
No  

 

FB1 
Heywood 
(Heywood 

Storridge Ward)  

The Railway Inn (function room), Station 
Road, Westbury, BA13 4HW 

No 
Heywood/Hawkeridge Village Hall 

Church Road, Heywood, Westbury, 
Wiltshire, BA13 4LP1 

 

FB2 
Heywood 

(Heywood Village 
Ward)  

Heywood/Hawkeridge Village Hall Church 
Road, Heywood, Westbury, Wiltshire, 

BA13 4LP 
No  

 

P
age 89



68 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling station change.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 90



69 
 

38 Fovant & Chalke Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3651 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AF Barford St. Martin 
Barford Countryside Unit Dairy Lane, 

Barford St Martin, SP3 4AT 
No  

 

AP 
Compton 

Chamberlayne 

Compton Chamberlayne Village Hall 
Compton Chamberlayne, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP3 5DS 
No  

 

AZ Fovant 
Fovant Village Hall Tisbury Road, Fovant, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP3 5JL 
No  

 

EA Alvediston 
Berwick St John Memorial Hall Berwick St 

John, Shaftesbury, Dorset, SP7 0HS 
No  

 

EB Ansty 
Ansty PYO and Farm Shop Ansty, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 5PX 
No  

 

ED Berwick St John  
Berwick St John Memorial Hall Berwick St 

John, Shaftesbury, Dorset, SP7 0HS 
No  

 

P
age 91



70 
 

GN Sutton Mandeville 
The Lancers Guest House Sutton 

Mandeville (A30), Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 
5NL 

No 
Fovant Village Hall Tisbury Road, 

Fovant, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP3 5JL1 

 

GP Swallowcliffe 
Swallowcliffe Village Hall Swallowcliffe, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 5PA 
No 

Ansty PYO and Farm Shop Ansty, 
Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 5PX2 

 

GS Tollard Royal 
The Old Cart Shed Tollard Royal, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 5PP 
No 

Berwick St John Memorial Hall Berwick 
St John, Shaftesbury, Dorset, SP7 

0HS3 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Proposed polling station change. The Lancers Guest House is no longer available. Fovant Village Hall meets the accessibility 

requirements and has excellent parking facilities.  
2 Proposed polling station change. Both polling districts have an electorate of under 200 each. Combining to one polling station 

would be more efficient use of public funds.   
3 Proposed polling station change. Both polling districts have an electorate of under 150 each. Combining to one polling station 

would be more efficient use of public funds.   
4 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

 

Fovant and Chalke Valley continued on the next page.  

  

P
age 92



71 
 

 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AH Bishopstone 
Bishopstone Village Hall Bishopstone, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP5 4DD 
No  

 

AI Bowerchalke 
Bowerchalke Village Hall Church Street, 
Bowerchalke, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 

5BE 
No  

 

AK Broadchalke 
Broad Chalke Village Hall Broad Chalke, 

Broadchalke, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP5 5DH 
No  

 

AN Burcombe 
Burcombe Parish Hall Burcombe, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 0EJ 
No  

 

AX 
Ebbesbourne 

Wake 

Ebbesbourne Wake Village Hall Pound 
Street, Ebbesbourne Wake, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire SP5 5JE 
No  

 

DS Stratford Tony 
Bishopstone Village Hall Bishopstone, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP5 4DD 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 93



72 
 

39 Hilperton – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3430 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FC1 Hilperton 
Hilperton Village Hall Whaddon Lane, 
Hilperton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 

7RN 
No  

 

FC2 Hilperton 
St Marys Church Hall Horse Road, 

Hilperton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 
7PD 

No  
 

FC3 Hilperton 
Hilperton Village Hall Whaddon Lane, 
Hilperton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 

7RN 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
           1      No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 94



73 
 

40 Holt – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3629 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EC1 Atworth 
Atworth Village Hall Bath Road, Atworth, 

Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 8JY 
No  

 

FF1 Holt 
United Reformed Church Hall, The Street, 

Holt, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 6RS 
No  

 

GJ1 Staverton 
Staverton Club Staverton, Trowbridge, 

Wiltshire, BA14 6PA 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 95



74 
 

41 Kington – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4035 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

NI3 
Chippenham 

Without 

Chippenham Rugby Club Allington Fields, 
Frogwell, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 

0YZ 
No  

 

NJ1 Christian Malford 
Christian Malford Village Hall Christian 
Malford, Chippenham, Wiltshire SN15 

4BG 
No  

 

OE1 Kington Langley 
Kington Langley Village Hall Committee 
Room, Church Road, Kington Langley, 

Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 5NJ 
No  

 

OF1 
Kington St. 

Michael 
Kington St Michael Village Hall Kington St 

Michael, Wiltshire SN14 6HX 
No  

 

OJ1 
Langley Burrell 

Without 

Langley Burrell Village Hall Manor Farm 
Lane, Langley Burrell, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN15 4LL 
No  

 

P
age 96



75 
 

PQ1 Stanton St. Quintin 
Stanton St Quintin Village Hall Church 
Lane, Stanton St Quintin, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN14 6DE 
No  

 

PR1 Seagry 
Goss Croft Hall Jubilee Room, Upper 
Seagry, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 

5HD 
No  

 

PS1 Sutton Benger 
Sutton Benger Village Hall Chestnut 
Road, Sutton Benger, Chippenham, 

Wiltshire, SN15 4RP 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 97



76 
 

42 Laverstock – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4288 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

BG1 
Laverstock & Ford 

(Laverstock & 
Milford Ward) 

Laverstock & Ford Village Hall, Park Road 
(Off Duck Lane), Laverstock, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP1 1RQ 
No  

 

BS1 
Laverstock & Ford 
(Bishopdown Farm 

Ward)  

Hampton Park Pavilion (Community 
Centre), Ash Crescent, Hampton Park, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 3GY 
Yes1  

 

BS2 
Laverstock & Ford 
(Bishopdown Farm 

Ward) 

Hampton Park Pavilion (Community 
Centre), Ash Crescent, Hampton Park, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 3GY 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Boundary change between BS1 and BS2 to better apportion electors across the polling districts and account for new 

development in the area. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 98



77 
 

43 Ludgershall North & Rural – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3608 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

TD1 Chute 
Chute Village Hall Malthouse Lane, Chute 
Standen, Andover, Hampshire, SP11 9EE 

No  
 

TD2 Chute Forest 
Chute Village Hall Malthouse Lane, Chute 
Standen, Andover, Hampshire, SP11 9EE 

No  
 

TE1 
Collingbourne 

Ducis 

Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall Chicks 
Lane, Collingbourne Ducis, Marlborough, 

Wiltshire,  
SN8 3UH 

No  

 

TF1 
Collingbourne 

Kingston 

Collingbourne Kingston Village Hall 
Collingbourne Kingston, Marlborough, 

Wiltshire, SN8 3SE 
No  

 

VF1 Everleigh 
Collingbourne Ducis Village Hall Chicks 

Lane, Collingbourne Ducis, Marlborough, 
Wiltshire, SN8 3UH 

No  
 

P
age 99



78 
 

WI1 
Ludgershall 

(Lugershall North 
Ward)  

Ludgershall Memorial Hall Ludgershall, 
Andover, Hampshire, SP11 9LZ 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 100



79 
 

44 Lyneham – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4048 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

NK1 Clyffe Pypard 
Clyffe Pypard and Bushton Village Hall 
Bushton, Swindon, Wiltshire SN4 7PX 

No  
 

OS1 
Lyneham and 
Bradenstoke 

Bradenstoke Village Hall Bradenstoke, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire SN15 4ES 

No  
 

OT1 
Lyneham and 
Bradenstoke 

St Michael & All Angels Church Hall Calne 
Road, Lyneham, Chippenham, Wiltshire, 

SN15 4PR 
No  

 

PT1 Tockenham 
Tockenham Village Hall Orchard Lane, 

Tockenham, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN4 7PJ 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1  No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

 

Lyneham continued on the next page.  

P
age 101



80 
 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SJ1 Broad Hinton 
Broad Hinton Village Hall Yew Tree Lane, 

Broad Hinton, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN4 
9RH 

No  
 

ZH1 
Winterbourne 

Bassett 

Broad Hinton Village Hall Yew Tree Lane, 
Broad Hinton, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN4 

9RH 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

 
Comments from the review  

 Elected Official  
I have checked the proposals for Lyneham Division and these appear to be the same as in previous years. 
I therefore have no comments to add. 
 
 

 

P
age 102



81 
 

45 Malmesbury – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4224 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

OV1 
Malmesbury 
(Malmesbury 

Ward) 

Malmesbury Town Hall The Hub, Cross 
Hayes, Malmesbury, Wiltshire, SN16 9BZ 

No  
 

OV2 
Malmesbury 
(Malmesbury 

Ward) 

Activity Zone Malmesbury Leisure Centre, 
Bremilham Road, Malmesbury, Wiltshire 

SN16 0DQ 
No  

 

OV3 
Malmesbury 
(Malmesbury 

Ward) 

Activity Zone Malmesbury Leisure Centre, 
Bremilham Road, Malmesbury, Wiltshire 

SN16 0DQ 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
   1    No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 103



82 
 

46 Marlborough East – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3958 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

WN1 
Marlborough 

(Marlbourgh East 
Ward) 

St Margaret's Mead Youth Centre 30a St 
Margaret's Mead, Marlborough, Wiltshire, 

SN8 4BA 
Yes1  

 

WN2 
Marlborough 

(Marlbourgh East 
Ward) 

Marlborough Town Hall, 5 High Street, 
Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 1AA2 

Yes1  
 

WP1 Mildenhall 
Mildenhall Village Hall Mildenhall, 
Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 2LR 

No  
 

YA1 Savernake 
St Margaret's Mead Youth Centre 30a St 
Margaret's Mead, Marlborough, Wiltshire, 

SN8 4BA 
No  

 

P
age 104



83 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change between WN1 and WN2 to better apportion electors across the polling district.  
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Marlborough Town Hall, SN8 1AA Hall to be used as polling station and 

polling place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 105



84 
 

47 Marlborough West – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4370 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SD1 Avebury 
Avebury Social Centre High Street, 

Avebury, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 
1RF 

No  
 

WM1 
Marlborough 

(Marlborough West 
Ward) 

Marlborough Leisure Centre Barton Dene, 
Bath Road, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 

1PB 
Yes1  

 

WM2 
Marlborough 

(Marlborough West 
Ward) 

Marlborough Town Hall 5 High Street, 
Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 1AA 

Yes1  
 

XI1 Preshute 
Kennet Valley Hall Lockeridge, 

Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 4EL 
No  

 

ZD1 West Overton 
Kennet Valley Hall Lockeridge, 

Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 4EL 
No  

 

ZD2 East Kennett 
Avebury Social Centre High Street, 

Avebury, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 
1RF 

No  
 

P
age 106



85 
 

ZD3 Fyfield 
Kennet Valley Hall Lockeridge, 

Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 4EL 
No  

 

ZI1 
Winterbourne 

Monkton 

Avebury Social Centre High Street, 
Avebury, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 

1RF 
No  

 

ZI2 Berwick Bassett 
Avebury Social Centre High Street, 

Avebury, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 
1RF 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change between WM1 and WM2 to follow road boundary (A345). 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in  SN8 4EG  
I hope you keep our local polling station open Kennet Valley Hall. It is easily accessible both on foot within the Kennet Valley 
Parish and by car for those further away. Marlborough can be congested at times and could lead to voting numbers dropping.  

 

 

P
age 107



86 
 

48 Melksham East – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3643 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Melksham Rugby Football Club, SN12 7GU is to be used as the polling place. 

The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  

The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or 

polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FR1 
Melksham 

(Melksham East 
Ward) 

Melksham RFC Oakfields Stadium, 
Eastern Way, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

7GU 
Yes1  

 

FR2 
Melksham 

(Melksham East 
Ward) 

Melksham RFC Oakfields Stadium, 
Eastern Way, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

7GU 
Yes1  

 

FR3 
Melksham 

(Melksham East 
Ward) 

Melksham RFC Oakfields Stadium, 
Eastern Way, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

7GU 
No  

 

FR4 
Melksham 

(Melksham East 
Ward) 

Melksham RFC Oakfields Stadium, 
Eastern Way, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

7GU 
Yes2  

 

FR5 
Melksham 

(Melksham East 
Ward) 

Melksham RFC Oakfields Stadium, 
Eastern Way, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

7GU 
Yes1  

 

P
age 108



87 
 

FR6 
Melksham 

(Melksham East 
Ward) 

Melksham RFC Oakfields Stadium, 
Eastern Way, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

7GU 
Yes2  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling districts have been reapportioned across FR1, FR2 and FR5 to better apportion the electors across the polling 

districts. Replaced by 2 new polling districts FR1 and FR2.  
2 Polling Districts FR4 and FR6 merge. The electorate of is FR4 is 1083 and the electorate of FR6 is 171 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district FR4 to 1254. New polling district to be named FR4. 
3 Comments welcomed on polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elected Official  
I believe that the current polling station is not suitable. It should be replaced or supplemented by the use of Forrest and 
Sandridge school on Carnesbill Road or the Water Meadow public house at Verbena Court  

 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
The current polling station arrangements are deemed to be suitable. The Water Meadow has been visited in the past but is deemed 
not to be suitable as there is no separate function room. Schools are only used as polling stations where no other suitable venues 
can be identified or in exceptional circumstances. The (A)RO welcomes further suggestions of polling stations in the area.  
 

 

P
age 109



88 
 

49 Melksham Forest – Propsosed change – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3884 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FN1 
Melksham 

(Melksham Forest 
Ward) 

Queensway Hall, Queensway, Melksham, 
Wiltshire, SN12 7LE1 

No  
 

FN2 
Melksham 

(Melksham Forest 
Ward) 

Melksham Welcome Hall (Formerly 
Melksham Skills Centre), Church Lane, 

Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 7EF 
Yes2  

 

FN3 
Melksham 

(Melksham Forest 
Ward) 

Forest Community Centre Bowmans 
Court, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 7FF 

No  
 

FN4 
Melksham 

(Melksham Forest 
Ward) 

Melksham Welcome Hall (Formerly 
Melksham Skills Centre)), Church Lane, 

Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 7EF 
Yes1  

 

P
age 110



89 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Queensway Hall, SN12 7LE is to be used as the polling place. The 

polling place is outside of the unitary division.  
2 Polling Districts FN2 and FN4 merge. The electorate of is FN2 is 688 and the electorate of FN4 is 896 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district FN2 to 1582. New polling district to be named FN2. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

 
Comments from the review:  

 Organisation  
Our hall used to hired out for the elections however the cost of insurance, heat and electric means that it is no longer viable to 
rent it out any longer so I think you may need to find somewhere else.  
 
 

 

The (Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
Melksham Welcome Hall is no longer available. An alternative venue within the unitary division will be sought.  

 

P
age 111



90 
 

50 Melksham South – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3777 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FM1 
Melksham 

(Melksham South 
Ward)  

The Canberra Centre (To The Rear of The 
Front Building), 56 Spa Road, Melksham, 

Wiltshire, SN12 7NY 
Yes2  

 

FM2 
Melksham 

(Melksham South 
Ward) 

Melksham Assembly Hall (Arts Cafe) 
Market Place, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

6ES 
Yes1 

Melksham Campus, Market Place, 
Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 6ES4 

 

FM3 
Melksham 

(Melksham South 
Ward) 

Melksham Assembly Hall (Arts Cafe) 
Market Place, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

6ES 
Yes1 

Melksham Campus, Market Place, 
Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 6ES4 

 

FM4 
Melksham 

(Melksham South 
Ward) 

Queensway Hall Queensway, Melksham, 
Wiltshire, SN12 7LE 

Yes3  
 

P
age 112



91 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts FM2 and FM3 merge. The electorate of is FM2 is 988 and the electorate of FM3 is 702 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district FM2 to 1582. New polling district to be named FM1. 
2 Minor boundary change between FM1 and FM3. 
3 Rename polling district to FM3.  
4 The Arts Café in Melksham has closed. New polling station allocated as Melksham Campus, SN12 6ES.  
5 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 113



92 
 

51 Melksham Without North & Shurnhold – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3612 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FX1 

Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 
(Beanacre, Shaw, 

Whitley & 
Blackmore Ward)) 

Whitley Reading Rooms Middle Lane, 
Whitley, Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 8QR 

No  

 

FX2 

Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 
(Beanacre, Shaw, 

Whitley & 
Blackmore Ward)) 

Beanacre Church Schoolroom Beanacre, 
Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 

No  

 

FX3 

Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 
(Beanacre, Shaw, 

Whitley & 
Blackmore Ward)) 

Melksham Football Club Oakfields 
Stadium, Eastern Way, Melksham, 

Wiltshire, SN12 7GU1 
No  

 

P
age 114



93 
 

FY1 
Melksham 

(Melksham North 
Ward) 

Baptist Church Old Broughton Road, 
Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 8BX 

No  
 

FY2 
Melksham 

(Melksham North 
Ward) 

Baptist Church Old Broughton Road, 
Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 8BX 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Melksham Football Club, SN12 7GU is to be used as the polling station 

and polling place. The polling station is outside of the unitary division.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review:  

 Organisation 
 

Members of Melksham Without Parish Council in response the polling view, wish to submit the following comment: 
Polling District FX3 

It is asked if there scope for this particular polling district to be incorporated into Forest Community Centre polling station, as this 

is felt to be a more natural fit for residents of Woodrow and Forest Lane in particular, having previously voted at either St 

Andrews School Room or Church Lane or Forest Community Centre. 

 
Melksham Without Parish Council 
 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
Melksham Welcome Hall (Previously known as St Andrews Church School Room) is no longer available for use as a polling station. 
(A)RO will consider an alternative venue and will take into account the comments above. 

 

P
age 115



94 
 

52 Melksham Without West & Rural – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3606 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EL1 Broughton Gifford 
Broughton Gifford Village Hall The Street, 
Broughton Gifford, Melksham, Wiltshire, 

SN12 8PR 
No  

 

FZ1 
Melksham Without 
(Melksham Without 
(Berryfield Ward))  

Berryfield Village Hall Berryfield Park, 
Melksham, Wiltshire, SN12 6EE 

No 
Berryfield Village Hall, Telford Drive, 

Melksham, SN12 6GF  

 

GF1 Semington 
Semington Village Hall High Street, 

Semington, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 
6JR 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review:  

 Organisation in SN12 6EE  
There is a specific planning condition to allow for Berryfield Village Hall’s use as a polling station, so don’t be put off by their 
standard opening hours on their booking forms etc.  

Clerk & Responsible Financial Officer 

 

P
age 116



95 
 

 Organisation  
 

Members of Melksham Without Parish Council in response the polling view, wish to submit the following comments: 
 

Polling District FZ1 

 

To remove old Berryfield Village Hall polling station at Berryfield Park, which was demolished in December 2022 and to replace 

with the new Berryfield Village Hall, completed in January 2023 on Telford Drive, Melksham, SN12 6GF, which can be booked 

via their website: https://www.hallbookingonline.com/berryfield/ 

 

 

Melksham Without West & Rural is continued on the next page.  

  

P
age 117

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hallbookingonline.com%2Fberryfield%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cpollingreview%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C63d932b235fb4cc7fdde08dbd92fc608%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C638342571452864013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=z8vHJNMyeKQli%2BiHXVGMzP1SS6CgSiPOJVdAHjtOV8Q%3D&reserved=0


96 
 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FE6 Great Hinton 
Great Hinton Village Hall Great Hinton, 

Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 6BY 
No  

 

FH1 Keevil 
Keevil Village Hall Martins Road, Keevil, 

Trowbridge, Wiltshire BA14 6NA 
No  

 

GK1 Steeple Ashton 
Steeple Ashton Village Hall Church Street, 

Steeple Ashton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 
BA14 6EW 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 118



97 
 

53 Mere – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3594 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FI Kilmington 
Home Guard Club Kilmington Common, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 6QY 
No  

 

GA Mere 
Lecture Hall Salisbury Street, Mere, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 6HA 
No  

 

GM Stourton 
Stourton Memorial Hall Stourton, 
Warminster, Wiltshire BA12 6QE 

No  
 

IN West Knoyle 
West Knoyle Village Hall West Knoyle, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 6AE 
No  

 

IS Zeals 
Zeals Village Hall Zeals, Warminster, 

Wiltshire, BA12 6NY 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1  Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 119



98 
 

54 Minety – No proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate      3879 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MA1 Ashton Keynes 
Ashton Keynes Village Hall Park Place, 
Ashton Keynes, Swindon, Wiltshire SN6 

6NT 
No  

 

NU1 Crudwell 
Crudwell Village Hall Tetbury Lane, 

Crudwell, Malmesbury, Wiltshire SN16 
9HD 

No  
 

OM1 Leigh 
Ashton Keynes Village Hall Park Place, 
Ashton Keynes, Swindon, Wiltshire SN6 

6NT 
No  

 

OX1 Minety 
Minety Village Hall Hornbury Hill, Minety, 

Malmesbury, Wiltshire, SN16 9QH 
No  

 

PD1 Oaksey 
Oaksey Village Hall The Street, Oaksey, 

Malmesbury, Wiltshire, SN16 9TQ 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 120



99 
 

55 Nadder Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3621 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AR Dinton 
Dinton Village Hall Bratch Lane, Dinton, 

Salisbury, SP3 5EB 
No  

 

EO Chilmark 
Chilmark Reading Room Becketts Lane, 
Chilmark, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP3 5BD 

No  
 

EW East Knoyle 
East Knoyle Village Hall East Knoyle, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 6AE 
No  

 

EY Fonthill Bishop 
Fonthill Bishop Reading Room The Ring, 
Fonthill Bishop, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 

5SF 
No  

 

FD Hindon 
Hindon Village Hall Hindon, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP3 6ED 
No  

 

GE1 Sedgehill 
Sedgehill Village Hall Sedgehill, 
Shaftesbury, Dorset, SP7 9JQ 

No 
Semley Village Hall Semley, 

Shaftesbury, Dorset, SP7 9AP1 
 

GE2 Semley 
Semley Village Hall Semley, Shaftesbury, 

Dorset, SP7 9AP 
No  

 

GQ Teffont 
Teffont Village Hall Hindon Road, Teffont, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 5QU 
No  

 

P
age 121



100 
 

IU Chicklade 
Hindon Village Hall Hindon, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP3 6ED 
No  

 

IV 
Berwick St 
Leonard 

 

Fonthill Bishop Reading Room The Ring, 
Fonthill Bishop, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 

5SF 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Proposed polling station change to better meet the accessibility needs of the electorate. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

 

 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

DD Steeple Langford 
Langford Parish Hall Hanging Langford, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 4PA 
No  

 

DO Wylye 
Wyvern Village Hall High Street, Wylye, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 0QP 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
     1      Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 122



101 
 

56 Old Sarum & Lower Bourne Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4484 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

BC1 
Idmiston 

(Gomeldon Ward) 
Idmiston Parish Memorial Hall, Porton, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0LD1 
No  

 

BG2 

Laverstock & Ford 
(Ford, Old Sarum 

& Longhedge 
Ward) 

Old Sarum Community Centre (Opposite 
School), Pheasant Drive, Old Sarum, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 6GH 
Yes2  

 

BG3 

Laverstock & Ford 
(Ford, Old Sarum 

& Longhedge 
Ward) 

New Polling District. Polling Station to be 
decided under the 2023 review. 

Yes1 

Old Sarum Community Centre 
(Opposite School), Pheasant Drive, 
Old Sarum, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 

6GH 

 

DJ Winterbourne 
Glebe Hall Vicarage Drive, Winterbourne 

Earls, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP4 6HA 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Idmiston Parish Memorial Hall, SP4 0LD is to be used as the polling 

station and polling place. The polling place is outside of the unitary division.  
2 New Polling District BG3 to be created from BG2 to reapportion the electorate of the polling districts and account for new 

development in the area. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 123



102 
 

57 Pewsey – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3850 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

VB1 Easton 
Easton Royal Village Hall Easton Royal, 

Pewsey, Wiltshire 
No  

 

WQ1 Milton Lilbourne 
Milton Lilbourne Village Hall Milton 

Lilbourne, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 5LQ 
No  

 

XF1 Pewsey 
Bouverie Hall North Street, Pewsey, 

Wiltshire, SN9 5QE 
No  

 

XF2 Pewsey 
Bouverie Hall North Street, Pewsey, 

Wiltshire, SN9 5QE 
No  

 

ZK1 Wootton Rivers 
Wootton Rivers Village Hall Wootton 

Rivers, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 4NH 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1  No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in SN9 5JQ  
The Bouverie Hall in Pewsey is always immaculate and well manned by happy volunteers.  

 

P
age 124



103 
 

 Elector in SN9 5BJ 
I am a firm believer in leaving things alone. If it is not broke there is no need for a fix. The system works very well and accessible 
for all which is important.  
 

 Elector In SN9 5LQ 
All fine. Good Service. (votes at WQ1 Milton Lilbourne Village Hall)  

P
age 125



104 
 

58 Pewsey Vale East – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4303 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SL1 Burbage 
All Saints Church Hall Church Centre, 

Eastcourt, Burbage, Wiltshire, SN8 3AG 
No  

 

VH1 Froxfield 
Froxfield Memorial Hall Froxfield, 
Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 3LD 

No  
 

VI1 Grafton 
East Grafton Coronation Hall East 

Grafton, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 3DB 
No  

 

VJ1 Great Bedwyn 
Great Bedwyn Cricket Club Frog Lane, 
Great Bedwyn, Marlborough, Wiltshire, 

SN8 3PD 
No  

 

WA1 Ham 
Ham Village Hall Ham, Marlborough, 

Wiltshire, SN8 3QR 
No  

 

WA2 Buttermere 
Ham Village Hall Ham, Marlborough, 

Wiltshire, SN8 3QR 
No  

 

WH1 Little Bedwyn 
Great Bedwyn Cricket Club Frog Lane, 
Great Bedwyn, Marlborough, Wiltshire, 

SN8 3PD 
No  

 

P
age 126



105 
 

YC1 Shalbourne 
Shalbourne Village Hall Shalbourne, 

Wiltshire, SN8 3QH 
Yes1  

 

YC2 
Tidcombe & 

Fosbury 
Chute Village Hall Malthouse Lane, Chute 
Standen, Andover, Hampshire, SP11 9EE 

No 
Shalbourne Village Hall, Shalbourne, 

Wiltshire, SN8 3 QH2 
 

YD1 Shalbourne 
Shalbourne Village Hall Shalbourne, 

Wiltshire, SN8 3QH 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts YC1 and YD1 merge. The electorate of is YC1 is 36 and the electorate of YD1 is 422 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district YC1 to 458. New polling district to be named YC1. 
2 Proposed polling station change to move the polling station within the Unitary Division.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 127



106 
 

59 Pewsey Vale West – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4013 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SB1 All Cannings 
All Cannings Village Hall The Street, All 
Cannings, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 3PA 

No  
 

SC1 Alton 
Coronation Hall Alton Barnes, 

Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 4LB 
No  

 

SF1 Beechingstoke 
Woodborough Parish Rooms 

Woodborough, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 
5PH 

No  
 

TB1 Chirton 
Marden Village Hall Marden, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3RQ 
No  

 

TB2 Patney 
Marden Village Hall Marden, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3RQ 
No  

 

WJ1 Manningford 
Manningford Memorial Hall Manningford 

Bruce, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 6JF 
No  

 

WK1 Marden 
Marden Village Hall Marden, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 3RQ 
No  

 

XB1 North Newnton 
Hilcott Village Hall Hilcott, Pewsey, 

Wiltshire,  SN9 6LE 
No 

Rushall Village Hall Rushall, Pewsey, 
Wiltshire, SN9 6EN1 

 

P
age 128



107 
 

XN1 Rushall 
Rushall Village Hall Rushall, Pewsey, 

Wiltshire, SN9 6EN 
No  

 

XN2 
Charlton St Peter 

& Wilsford 
Rushall Village Hall Rushall, Pewsey, 

Wiltshire, SN9 6EN 
No  

 

YG1 
Stanton St. 

Bernard 

Stanton St Bernard Village Hall Stanton 
St. Bernard, Marlborough, Wiltshire, SN8 

4LG 
No  

 

YO1 Upavon 
Upavon Village Hall Andover Road, 

Upavon, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 6EB 
No  

 

ZE1 
Wilcot Huish and 

Oare 
Oare Village Hall Rudge Lane, Oare, 

Wiltshire, SN8 4JH 
Yes1  

 

ZE2 
Wilcot Huish and 

Oare 
Oare Village Hall Rudge Lane, Oare, 

Wiltshire, SN8 4JH 
Yes1  

 

ZE3 
Wilcot Huish and 

Oare 
Oare Village Hall Rudge Lane, Oare, 

Wiltshire, SN8 4JH 
Yes1  

 

ZG1 
Charlton St Peter 

& Wilsford 
Rushall Village Hall Rushall, Pewsey, 

Wiltshire, SN9 6EN 
No  

 

ZJ1 Woodborough 
Woodborough Parish Rooms 

Woodborough, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 
5PH 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts ZE1, ZE2 and ZE3 merge bringing the new polling district electorate to 446. New polling district called ZE1.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 
 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in SN10 3RQ  
Marden Village Hall – It is fully accessible via ramp with a handrail. The toilets are fully accessible from the polling area (no 
steps). It is light, warm, and airy. I think it is ideal and is also used by Chirton residents.  

 Organisation in SN8 4JH  
See Appendix B for full representation (relating to Wiltcot, Huish & Oare)  

 Elected Official   
See Appendix G  (relating to Hilcott Village Hall being demolished)  

 

P
age 129



108 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
 
The polling station Hilcott Village Hall identified for XB1 (North Newnton) has 372 electors. Polling station visits and comments from 
the review identify that the polling station Hilcott Village Hall has been demolished.  
Replacement polling station is Rushall Village Hall Rushall, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 6EN. This polling station is better suited than 
the parish rooms due to having more parking spaces and better access facilities.  
 
The Parish Council’s comments regarding ZE1, ZE2 and ZE3 are noted. These polling districts historically vote at Oare Village Hall 
and no issue has thus far been identified. Oare Village Hall is deemed a suitable venue for a polling station.  
 
Merging the polling districts streamlines the administration of the poll without impact to the electorate.  
 
The cost of the administration of polls does not fall under the scope of this review however it should be noted a second polling 
station would be a greater financial burden. The total electorate is 446 for the combined polling districts and it is not deemed that a 
second venue is necessary.  
 
 

 

P
age 130



109 
 

60 Purton – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       4875 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

PB1 Braydon 
Purton Village Hall Station Road, Purton, 

Swindon, Wiltshire SN5 4AJ 
No  

 

PJ1 Purton 
Purton & Cricklade YFC Hut Purton Stoke, 

Swindon, Wiltshire, SN5 4JG 
No  

 

PJ2 Purton 
Purton Village Hall Station Road, Purton, 

Swindon, Wiltshire SN5 4AJ 
Yes1  

 

PJ3 Purton 
Purton Village Hall Station Road, Purton, 

Swindon, Wiltshire SN5 4AJ 
No  

 

PJ4 Purton 
New polling district. Polling station to be 

allocated under the 2023 review. 
Yes1 

Cotswolds Rise Care Home, The 
Buffer, Purton, Wiltshire, SN5 4GT2 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 New Polling District PJ4 to be created from PJ2 to better apportion the electorate of the polling districts and account for new 

development in the area. 
2 Polling station allocated to Cotswolds Rise Care Home.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 131



110 
 

Comments from the review  

 Elected Official  
See Appendix H for full representation  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
A polling station (Cotswolds Rise Care Home) has been identified within the new polling district created (PJ4)  

 

P
age 132



111 
 

61 Redlynch & Landford – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3642 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

BF Landford 
Landford Village Hall Landford, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP5 2AE 
Yes1  

 

BF1 Landford 
Landford Village Hall Landford, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP5 2AE 
Yes1  

 

BF2 Landford 
Nomansland Reading Room North Lane, 
Nomansland, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 

2BU 
No  

 

BF3 Landford 
Landford Village Hall Landford, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP5 2AE 
Yes1  

 

BP1 Redlynch 
Morgans Vale & Woodfalls Village Hall 

The Ridge, Woodfalls, Salisbury, 
Wiltshire, SP5 2LD 

No  
 

BP2 Redlynch 
Redlynch Village Hall Vicarage Road, 

Lover, Redlynch, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 
2PG 

No  
 

P
age 133



112 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts BF, BF1 and BF3 merge. The electorate of BF is 790 BF1 is 192 and the electorate of BF3 is 95 electors 

bringing the total electorate for new polling district BF1 to 1071. New polling district to be named BF1. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 134



113 
 

62 Royal Wootton Bassett East – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3767 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

OQ1 Lydiard Millicent 
Lydiard Millicent Parish Hall The Street, 

Lydiard Millicent, Swindon, Wiltshire, SN5 
3LS 

No  
 

OR1 Lydiard Tregoze 
Hook Village Hall Hook, Swindon, 

Wiltshire, SN4 8EA 
No  

 

PX1 

Royal Wootton 
Bassett (Royal 

Wootton Bassett 
East Ward)  

Lime Kiln Leisure Centre Lime Kiln, Royal 
Wootton Bassett, Wiltshire, SN4 7HG1 

No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Lime Kiln Leisure Centre, SN4 7HG is to be used as polling station. The 

polling place is outside of the Unitary Division  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 135



114 
 

63 Royal Wootton Bassett North – No proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       4074 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

PV1 

Royal Wootton 
Bassett (Royal 

Wootton Bassett 
North Ward) 

Lime Kiln Leisure Centre Lime Kiln, Royal 
Wootton Bassett, Wiltshire, SN4 7HG 

No  

 

PV2 

Royal Wootton 
Bassett (Royal 

Wootton Bassett 
North Ward) 

Lime Kiln Leisure Centre Lime Kiln, Royal 
Wootton Bassett, Wiltshire, SN4 7HG 

No  

 

PV3 

Royal Wootton 
Bassett (Royal 

Wootton Bassett 
North Ward) 

Royal Wootton Bassett Memorial Hall 
Station Road, Royal Wootton Bassett, 

Wiltshire, SN4 8EN 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 136



115 
 

64 Royal Wootton Bassett South & West – No proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       4515 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MJ1 Broad Town 
Broad Town Village Hall Broad Town, 

Swindon, Wiltshire SN4 7RL 
No  

 

PU1 

Royal Wootton 
Bassett (Royal 

Wootton Bassett 
South & West 

Ward) 

Royal Wootton Bassett Memorial Hall 
Station Road, Royal Wootton Bassett, 

Wiltshire, SN4 8EN1 
No  

 

PU2 

Royal Wootton 
Bassett (Royal 

Wootton Bassett 
South & West 

Ward) 

Royal Wootton Bassett Memorial Hall 
Station Road, Royal Wootton Bassett, 

Wiltshire, SN4 8EN1 
No  

 

P
age 137



116 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Royal Wootton Basset Memorial Hall, SN4 8EN is to be used as polling 

station. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division  
2 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 138



117 
 

65 Salisbury Bemerton Heath – Proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3138 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CA1 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

Bemerton Heath 
Ward) 

St Michael`s Community Centre 
St.Michael`s Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire, 

SP2 9LE 
Yes1  

 

CA2 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

Bemerton Heath 
Ward) 

Bemerton Heath Neighbourhood Centre 
58-60 Pinewood Way, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire SP2 9HU 
Yes1  

 

CA3 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

Bemerton Heath 
Ward) 

St Michael`s Community Centre 
St.Michael`s Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire, 

SP2 9LE 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 3 new polling districts. Polling Districts named CA1, CA2 and CA3 to 

better apportion the electors across the polling districts. 
2    Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 139



118 
 

66 Salisbury Fisherton & Bemerton Village – Proposed changes – Comments received 

 

Electorate       4061 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CD1 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

Fisherton & Bemerton 
Village Ward) 

Bemerton Methodist Church Hall, 
Roman Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 

9BH 
Yes1  

 

CD2 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

Fisherton & Bemerton 
Village Ward) 

Bemerton Methodist Church Hall, 
Roman Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 

9BH 
Yes1  

 

CD3 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

Fisherton & Bemerton 
Village Ward) 

St Michael`s Community Centre, 
St.Michael`s Road, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP2 9LE2 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change between CD1 and CD2 to better apportion electors across the polling district.  
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, St Michael’s Community Centre, SP2 9LE is to be used as polling 

station and polling place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 140



119 
 

Comments from the review  

 Elector in SP2 9BH  
At a parish poll the times and locations of the parish poll were inadequate and outdated. The stations badly selected, the times 
were inconvenient and the lack of ability to use postal votes positively unworkable.  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
The comment does not fall within the scope of this review. The elector will be contacted.  

 

P
age 141



120 
 

67 Salisbury Harnham East – No proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3692 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CH1 

Salisbury 
(Salisbury 

Harnham East 
Ward) 

Harnham Free Church 15-16 Hawksridge, 
Ridings Mead, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 

8ER 
No  

 

CH2 

Salisbury 
(Salisbury 

Harnham East 
Ward) 

St Elizabeth Hall Exeter Street, Salisbury, 
Wiltshire, SP1 2SG 

No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
     1     No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 142



121 
 

68 Salisbury Harnham West – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3366 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CG1 

Salisbury 
(Salisbury 

Harnham West 
Ward) 

Harnham Free Church, 15-16 Hawks 
Ridge, Ridings Mead, Salisbury, Wiltshire, 

SP2 8ER1 
No 

Trinity Church Centre (Formerly 
known as Harnham Free Church, SP2 

8ER  

 

CG2 

Salisbury 
(Salisbury 

Harnham West 
Ward 

Community Lounge Norfolk Road, 
Harnham, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 8HG 

Yes2 

Harnham Parish Hall Lower Street, 
Harnham, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 

8EY3  

Change revoked. See comments 
below.  

 

CG3 

Salisbury 
(Salisbury 

Harnham West 
Ward 

Harnham Parish Hall Lower Street, 
Harnham, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 8EY 

Yes2  

 

P
age 143



122 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Harnham Free Church is to be used as polling station and polling place. 

The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
2 Minor boundary change between CG2 and CG3 to better apportion electors across the polling districts.  
3 Proposed polling station change to better meet the accessibility needs of the electorate.  
4 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review: 

 Elector in  SP2  
Harnham Parish Hall on Lower Street is ideal 

 Elected Official  
See Appendix E for full comments (in relation to Community Lounge)  

 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
Further to comments from the review and a recent parish by-election where the Community Lounge was used, the current polling 
arrangements are deemed to be suitable.  
 
It should be noted that Harnham Free Church has changed its name recently to Trinity Church Centre  

 P
age 144



123 
 

69 Salisbury Milford – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4077 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CC1 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury Milford 
Ward) 

Barrington Centre, 64 Barrington Road, 
Bishopdown, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP1 3JD 

Yes2  
 

CC2 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury Milford 
Ward) 

Sarum St Martin Church Hall Church of 
Sarum St Martin, St Martins Church 
Street, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 2HY 

Yes1  
 

CC3 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury Milford 
Ward) 

Barrington Centre 64 Barrington Road, 
Bishopdown, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP1 3JD 

Yes2  
 

CC4 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury Milford 
Ward) 

Sarum St Martin Church Hall Church of 
Sarum St Martin, St Martins Church 
Street, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 2HY 

Yes1  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change. 
2 Boundary change to better apportion electors across the polling districts. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 145



124 
 

70 Salisbury St Edmund`s – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3644 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CF1 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury St 
Edmund’s Ward) 

Salisbury Methodist Church Hall 26 St 
Edmunds Church Street, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP1 1EF 
Yes1  

 

CF2 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury St 
Edmund’s Ward) 

Elim Church Church Lounge, Elim Centre, 
Dews Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 7SN 

Yes1  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Boundary change to better apportion electors across the polling districts. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in SP1 2LJ  
The Methodist Church on St Edmund’s Church street is a convenient and accessible polling station.  
 

 

P
age 146



125 
 

71 Salisbury St Francis & Stratford – No proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3964 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CB1 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

St Francis & Stratford 
Ward)  

Salisbury Scout Hut (23rd Salisbury) 67 
Stratford Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire, 

SP1 3JR 
No  

 

CB2 
Salisbury (Salisbury 

St Francis & Stratford 
Ward) 

St Francis Church Hall Beatrice Road, 
Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 3PN 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 147



126 
 

72 Salisbury St Paul`s – No proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3669 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

CE1 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury St 
Paul’s Ward) 

Elim Church, Church Lounge, Elim 
Centre, Dews Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire 

SP2 7SN1 
No  

 

CE2 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury St 
Paul’s Ward) 

Dennis Marsh House (The Scout Hut), 
Westminster Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire, 

SP2 7DG 
No  

 

CE3 
Salisbury 

(Salisbury St 
Paul’s Ward) 

Bemerton Methodist Church Hall Roman 
Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP2 9BH2 No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Elim Church, SP2 7SN is to be used as polling station and polling 

place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
2 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Bemerton Methodist Church, SP2 9BH is to be used as polling station 

and polling place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
3 No change. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 148



127 
 

73 Sherston – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3962 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   North Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South Cotswolds  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

MK1 Brokenborough 
Old Post Office Main Street, 

Brokenborough, Malmesbury, 
Wiltshire, SN16 0HZ2 

No  
 

NW1 Easton Grey 
Sherston Village Hall High Street, 
Sherston, Malmesbury, Wiltshire, 

SN16 0LH 
No  

 

OO1 Luckington 
Alderton Village Hall The Street, 

Alderton, Chippenham, Wiltshire SN14 
6NL 

Yes1 
Luckington Village Hall Luckington, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 6NP4 

 

OP1 Luckington 
Luckington Village Hall Luckington, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 6NP 

Yes1  
 

OV4 
Malmesbury 

(Backbridge Ward) 

Activity Zone Malmesbury Leisure 
Centre, Bremilham Road, 

Malmesbury, Wiltshire SN16 0DQ5 

No  
 

PC1 Norton & Foxley 
Sherston Village Hall High Street, 
Sherston, Malmesbury, Wiltshire, 

SN16 0LH 
No  

 

P
age 149



128 
 

PK1 
St Paul Malmesbury 

Without (St Paul Ward) 

Corston & Rodbourne Reading Room 
The Street, Corston, Malmesbury, 

Wiltshire, SN16 0HG 
No  

 

PK2 
St Paul Malmesbury 

Without (St Paul Ward) 

Malmesbury Library Exhibition Room, 
Cross Hayes, Malmesbury, Wiltshire, 

SN16 9BG 
No  

 

PN1 
St Paul Malmesbury 
Without (Westport 

Ward) 

Malmesbury Library Exhibition Room, 
Cross Hayes, Malmesbury, Wiltshire, 

SN16 9BG 
No  

 

PO1 Sherston 
Sherston Village Hall High Street, 
Sherston, Malmesbury, Wiltshire, 

SN16 0LH 
No  

 

PP1 Sopworth 
Sopworth Village Hall Sopworth, 

Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 6PR 
No 

Luckington Village Hall Luckington, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 6NP3 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts OO1 and OP1 merge. The electorate of is OO1 is 83 and the electorate of OP1 is 439 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district OP1 to 522. New polling district to be named OP1. 
2 Comments welcomed on alternative venues in MK1 Brokenborough.  
3 Polling station change. Electorate of PP1 is less than 90 electors.    
4 Polling station change.  
5 In the absence of suitable venues within the division, Activity Zone Malmesbury Leisure Centre, SN16 0DQ is to be used as 

polling station and polling place. The polling place is outside of the Unitary Division.  
6 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review  

 Organisation in Luckington & Alderton  
We object to the closure as there is no public transport and those with disabilities or without a car cannot travel. Currently Alderton 
has 83 voters. This fails to include the approved development at New Farm which will double the population of Alderton.  

 

P
age 150



129 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
 
There does not appear to be sufficient need to maintain two polling districts and polling stations within the Parish of Luckington. 
The electorate of the parish is 522.  
 
It is acknowledged that the polling station for OO1 is convenient for the 83 electors in Alderton however, Luckington Village Hall is 
situated centrally within the Parish. The two Village Halls are approximately 1.1 miles away from each other. 
 
It is therefore deemed that the original proposal is upheld.  
 

 

P
age 151



130 
 

74 Southwick – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3294 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

GC1 North Bradley 
Progressive Hall Woodmarsh, North 

Bradley, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0SB 
No  

 

GH1 Southwick 
Southwick Village Hall Frome Road, 

Southwick, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 
9QN 

No  
 

IH1 West Ashton 
West Ashton Village Hall Bratton Road, 

West Ashton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 
6AZ 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
      1       No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in  BA14 9PN  
I need access to Southwick Village Hall as I will be in a wheelchair  
 

 

P
age 152



131 
 

75 The Lavingtons – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3575 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SN1 Cheverell Magna 
The New Pavilion Witchcombe Lane, 

Great Cheverell, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 
5TH 

No  
 

SO1 Little Cheverell 
The New Pavilion Witchcombe Lane, 

Great Cheverell, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 
5TH 

No  
 

VA1 Easterton 
Easterton Village Hall Easterton, Devizes, 

Wiltshire, SN10 4P 
No  

 

WL1 Market Lavington 
Market Lavington Community Hall St 

Marys Road, Market Lavington, Devizes, 
Wiltshire, SN10 4DG 

No  
 

ZC1 West Lavington 
West Lavington Village Hall Sandfield, 

West Lavington, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 
4HL 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
      1    No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 153



132 
 

76 Tidworth East & Ludgershall South – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3970 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

WI2 
Ludgershall 

(Lugershall South 
Ward) 

Ludgershall Memorial Hall Ludgershall, 
Andover, Hampshire, SP11 9LZ 

No  
 

XC1 
Tidworth (Tidworth 

East & South 
Ward) 

Tidworth Community Centre, Wylye Road, 
Tidworth SP9 7QH1 

No  
 

XC2 
Tidworth (Tidworth 

East & South 
Ward) 

Tidworth Community Centre, Wylye Road, 
Tidworth SP9 7QH2 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 In the absence of suitable venues to be used as polling stations, the polling place is outside of the Unitary Division in 

Tidworth Community Centre, SP9 7QH.  
2 Tidworth Community Centre is currently under construction and suggestions of venues within the Unitary Division would be 

welcome.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 154



133 
 

Comments from the review:  

 Elector in SP9 7NH  
Please ensure adequate staffing and marshalling particularly for assisting the elderly in the community by contacting volunteer 
sector.  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
Tidworth Community Centre construction is expected to be completed by the next scheduled elections in May 2024.  
 

 

P
age 155



134 
 

77 Tidworth North & West – Proposed changes – No comments  

 

Electorate       3767 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

XC3 
Tidworth (Tidworth 

North & West 
Ward) 

Tidworth Community Centre,Wylye Road, 
Tidworth SP9 7QH1 

Yes  
 

XC4 
Tidworth (Tidworth 

North & West 
Ward) 

New Polling District. Polling station to be 
allocated under the 2023 review2 

Yes 
Tidworth Community Centre,Wylye 

Road, Tidworth SP9 7QH 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Tidworth Community Centre is currently under construction and suggestions of venues within the Unitary Division would be 

welcome. 
2 New Polling District XC4 to be created from XC3 to account for new development in the area. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 156



135 
 

78 Till Valley – No proposed changes – No comments  

 

Electorate       4020 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   East Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AG Berwick St James 
The Reading Room Berwick St.James, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 4TN 
No  

 

AU Durnford 
Lake Estate Club Wilsford Cum Lake, 

Amesbury, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 7BN 
No  

 

BA Great Wishford 
South Newton & Great Wishford Village 
Hall South Newton, Salisbury, Wiltshire 

SP2 0PJ 
No  

 

BL Orcheston 
Orcheston Village Hall Orcheston, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 4RW 
No  

 

DA Shrewton 
Maddington Church Room Shrewton, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 4JE 
No  

 

DB South Newton 
South Newton & Great Wishford Village 
Hall South Newton, Salisbury, Wiltshire 

SP2 0PJ 
No  

 

DC Stapleford 
Stapleford Village Hall Berwick Road, 

Stapleford, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 4LJ 
No  

 

P
age 157



136 
 

DE Tilshead 
Tilshead Village Hall Tilshead, Salisbury, 

Wiltshire, SP3 4RZ 
No  

 

DH Wilsford Cum Lake 
Lake Estate Club Wilsford Cum Lake, 

Amesbury, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 7BN 
No  

 

DL 
Winterbourne 

Stoke 
The Bell Inn High Street, Winterbourne 

Stoke, Wiltshire, SP3 4SZ 
No  

 

DN Woodford 
Middle Woodford Village Hall Middle 

Woodford, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 6NP 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No change. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 158



137 
 

79 Tisbury – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3600 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

ET 
Donhead St 

Andrew 
The Forester Pub Lower Street, Donhead 
St Andrew, Shaftesbury, Dorset, SP7 9EE 

No  
 

EU Donhead St. Mary 
New Remembrance Hall Remembrance 

Field, Charlton, Donhead St Mary, Dorset, 
SP7 0PL 

No  
 

EZ Fonthill Gifford 
Fonthill Gifford Recreation Hut Fonthill 
Gifford, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 6QP 

No 
Hinton Hall Church Street, Tisbury, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP3 6NH1 
 

GR Tisbury 
Hinton Hall Church Street, Tisbury, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP3 6NH 
No  

 

IO West Tisbury 
Hinton Hall Church Street, Tisbury, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire SP3 6NH 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling station changed. Current polling station does not meet needs of accessibility. Proposed polling station Hinton Hall, 

SP3 6NG.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 159



138 
 

Comments from the review  
Elector in SP3 6BF 

 Why do you use Hinton hall when there is a Wiltshire Council owned property (Nadder Centre) that could be used? It would 
mean not renting the hall or paying for classes to be moved. It also has a larger car park and everyone knows it is there.  

 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
Hinton Hall is deemed to be suitable and accessible to the electorate.  

 

P
age 160



139 
 

80 Trowbridge Adcroft – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3818 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

HA1 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Adcroft Ward) 

Cricket Club Pavillion Lower Court, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 8PX 

Yes2  
 

HA2 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Adcroft Ward) 

Cricket Club Pavillion Lower Court, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 8PX 

No  
 

HA3 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Adcroft Ward) 

St Thomas' Church Hall St Thomas Road, 
Off Timbrell Street, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 8PT 
Yes2  

 

HA4 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Adcroft Ward) 

St Thomas' Church Hall St Thomas Road, 
Off Timbrell Street, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 8PT 
Yes1  

 

HA5 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Adcroft Ward) 

The Studio Fieldways Hotel, Hilperton 
Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 7JP 

Yes1 
St Thomas' Church Hall St Thomas 

Road, Off Timbrell Street, Trowbridge, 
Wiltshire, BA14 8PT 

 

P
age 161



140 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts HA4 and HA5 merge. The electorate of is HA4 is 589 and the electorate of HA5 is 423 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district HA4 to 1012. New polling district to be named HA4. Polling station for new HA4 will be 
St Thomas' Church Hall, BA14 8PT. 

2 Minor boundary change between HA1 and HA3 to better apportion electors across the polling district. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 162



141 
 

81 Trowbridge Central – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4204 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

HC1 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Central 
Ward) 

Civic Centre St Stephens Place, 
Trowbridge 

Yes1  
 

HC2 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Central 
Ward) 

Wesley Road Methodist Church Wesley 
Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0AX 

Yes1  
 

HC3 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Central 
Ward) 

Wesley Road Methodist Church Wesley 
Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0AX 

Yes1  
 

HC4 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Central 
Ward) 

Civic Centre St Stephens Place, 
Trowbridge 

Yes2  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Existing polling districts deleted. Replaced by 2 new polling districts HC1 and HS2 to better apportion electors across the 

polling districts.  
2 Rename this polling district HC3.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 163



142 
 

82 Trowbridge Drynham – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3341 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

GC2 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Drynham Ward) 

Holbrook School Zephaniah Class, 
Holbrook Lane, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 0PS 
Yes1 

The Homestead Ashmead, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0NZ2 
Revoke change. See comments 

below.  

 

HD1 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Drynham Ward) 

Holbrook School Zephaniah Class, 
Holbrook Lane, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 0PS 
No 

The Homestead Ashmead, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0NZ2 

Revoke change. See comments 
below. 

 

HD2 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Drynham Ward) 

The Homestead Ashmead, Trowbridge, 
Wiltshire, BA14 0NZ 

No  
 

HD3 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Drynham Ward) 

Holbrook School Zephaniah Class, 
Holbrook Lane, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 0PS 
Yes1 

The Homestead Ashmead, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0NZ2 

Revoke change. See comments 
below. 

 

P
age 164



143 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts GC2 and HD3 merge. The electorate of is GC2 is 46 and the electorate of HD3 is 939 electors bringing the 

total electorate for new polling district GC2 to 985. New polling district to be named GC2. 
2 Polling station change. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
Following a visit to Holbrook School, the polling station venue is deemed to be suitable and will therefore be retained.   

 

P
age 165



144 
 

83 Trowbridge Grove – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3853 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division. The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

HG1 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Grove 
Ward) 

St Johns Church Hall Church Lane, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0EH 

Yes1  
 

HG2 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Grove 
Ward) 

St Johns Church Hall Church Lane, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0EH 

Yes2  
 

HG3 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Grove 
Ward) 

St Johns Church Hall Church Lane, 
Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 0EH 

Yes2  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change.  
2 Polling Districts HG2 and HG3 merge.  The electorate of is HG2 is 1492 and the electorate of HG3 is 521 electors bringing 

the total electorate for new polling district HG2 to 2016. New polling district to be named HG2. 
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 166



145 
 

Comments from the review:  

 Elected Official  
I am the Wiltshire Cllr for this area. I support merging districts HG2 and HG3. Please consider a second polling station as the 
current one is 1km or more from the voters in the north of the area. Other divisions have 2 or 3.  

 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
St Johns Church Hall is deemed to be a suitable venue and accessible within the division. No suitable additional venue has been 
identified however suggestions in the future will be welcomed.  

 

P
age 167



146 
 

84 Trowbridge Lambrok – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3889 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

HL1 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Lambrok Ward) 

Studley Green Community Centre 
Lambrok Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 9HA 
No  

 

HL2 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Lambrok Ward) 

Studley Green Community Centre 
Lambrok Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 9HA 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
     1    No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 168



147 
 

85 Trowbridge Park – Proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       2849 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

GC3 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Park 
Ward) 

Longfield Community Centre Weavers 
Drive, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 7AL 

Yes1  
 

HM1 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Park 
Ward) 

Longfield Community Centre Weavers 
Drive, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 7AL 

Yes1  
 

HM2 
Trowbridge 

(Trowbridge Park 
Ward) 

Longfield Community Centre Weavers 
Drive, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 7AL 

Yes1  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 2 new polling districts. Polling Districts named HM1 and HM2 to better 

apportion the electors across the polling districts. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 169



148 
 

86 Trowbridge Paxcroft – No proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3857 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

HP1 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Paxcroft Ward)  

Paxcroft Community Centre 17 Hackett 
Place, Hilperton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 7GW 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1  No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area 

 

 

Trowbridge Paxcroft continued on the next page.  

  

P
age 170



149 
 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

HP2 
Trowbridge 
(Trowbridge 

Paxcroft Ward) 

Paxcroft Community Centre 17 Hackett 
Place, Hilperton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 7GW 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
       1  No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area 

 

P
age 171



150 
 

87 Urchfont & Bishops Cannings – Proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3816 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Devizes  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

SG1 Bishops Cannings 
Bishops Cannings Village Hall Bishops 

Cannings, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 2LA 
Yes1  

 

SG2 Bishops Cannings 
Bishops Cannings Village Hall Bishops 

Cannings, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 2LA 
Yes1 

Army Cadet Centre Le Marchant 
Barracks, Franklyn Road, (access also 

via Hambleton Avenue), Devizes, 
Wiltshire, SN10 2FE2 

 

SG3 Bishops Cannings 

Army Cadet Centre Le Marchant 
Barracks, Franklyn Road, (access also via 

Hambleton Avenue), Devizes, Wiltshire, 
SN10 2FE 

Yes1  

 

VE1 Etchilhampton 
Etchilhampton Village Hall Etchilhampton, 

Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 3JY 
No  

 

VE2 Stert 
Urchfont Village Hall Church Lane, 

Urchfont, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 4QT 
No 

Etchilhampton Village Hall 
Etchilhampton, Devizes, Wiltshire, 

SN10 3JY3 

 

YP1 Urchfont 
Urchfont Village Hall Church Lane, 

Urchfont, Devizes, Wiltshire, SN10 4QT 
No  

 

P
age 172



151 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 2 new polling districts. Polling Districts SG2 and SG3 will be merged 

and a minor boundary change will be made in SG1.  
2 Proposed polling station change.  
3 Proposed polling station change. 
4 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 173



152 
 

88 Warminster Broadway – Proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       3914 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish Ward 
Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

IB1 
Warminster 
(Warminster 

Broadway Ward) 

Christ Church Community Hall Upper 
Marsh Road, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 9PJ 
Yes1  

 

IB2 
Warminster 
(Warminster 

Broadway Ward) 

Christ Church Community Hall Upper 
Marsh Road, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 9PJ 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change to amend the south boundary around the rear of the properties. No properties move polling districts 

in this minor change.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 174



153 
 

89 Warminster East – No proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       4116 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

IE1 
Warminster 

(Warminster East 
Ward) 

St George's RC Church Hall 31 Boreham 
Road, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 9JP 

No  
 

IE2 
Warminster 

(Warminster East 
Ward) 

Warminster Civic Centre Copheap Room, 
Sambourne Road, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 8LB 
No  

 

IE3 
Warminster 

(Warminster East 
Ward) 

St George's RC Church Hall 31 Boreham 
Road, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 9JP 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
      1  Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area.  

 

P
age 175



154 
 

90 Warminster North & Rural – Proposed changes – comments received  

 

Electorate       4110 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EN1 Chapmanslade 
Chapmanslade Village Hall 

Chapmanslade, Westbury, Wiltshire, 
BA13 4AP 

No  
 

ER1 Corsley 
Corsley Reading Rooms Corsley Heath, 

Corsley, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 7PR 
No  

 

FG1 Horningsham 
Horningsham Village Hall Water Lane, 
Horningsham, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 7LL 
No  

 

FM 
Maiden Bradley 
with Yarnfield 

Maiden Bradley Village Hall High Street, 
Maiden Bradley, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 7JG 
No  

 

IC1 
Warminster 

(Warminster North 
Ward) 

Warminster Garrison Community Centre, 
Firbank Crescent, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 0BY 
Yes1  

 

IC2 
Warminster 

(Warminster North 
Ward) 

Warminster Garrison Community Centre, 
Firbank Crescent, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 0BY2 
Yes1  

 

P
age 176



155 
 

IG1 Upton Scudamore 
St Marys Church Upton Scudamore, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 0AE 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Minor boundary change between IC1 and IC2 to better apportion electors across the polling district. 
2 Comments welcomed on whether IC1 and IC2 should vote outside of the Unitary Division at Warminster Civic Centre.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

 
Comments from the review:  

 Elector in BA12 8QT  
Living in Hollybush Road – why is my polling station the Cricket Club. Getting there involves passing a far more convenient 
station at the Assembly Rooms and having to climb a very steep Sambourne Hill – not good news for a 70 year old.  

 Elected Official 
See Appendix D  

 

 

 
(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
The minor boundary change proposal between IC1 and IC2 has been revoked as it is unnecessary.  
 
The polling station for Hollybush Road (IC2) is currently Warminster Garrison, not the Cricket club.  
 
The comment regarding IC2 voting at the Warminster Garrison would mean that electors would be voting outside their unitary 
division which would require approval the designation of the polling place to be the polling station. The alternative polling station 
would be Warminster Civic Centre. 
 

 P
age 177



156 
 

91 Warminster West – Proposed changes – No comments received  

 

Electorate       3257 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

ID1 
Warminster 

(Warminster West 
Ward) 

Warminster Cricket Club The Pavilion, 
Sambourne Road, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 8LJ 
Yes1  

 

ID2 
Warminster 

(Warminster West 
Ward) 

Warminster Cricket Club The Pavilion, 
Sambourne Road, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 8LJ 
Yes1  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Boundary change between ID1 and ID2 to better apportion electors across the polling district.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 178



157 
 

92 Westbury East – No proposed changes – Comment received  

 

Electorate       3978 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

IJ1 
Westbury 

(Westbury East 
Ward) 

Laverton Hall Bratton Road, Westbury, 
Wiltshire, BA13 3EN 

No  
 

IJ2 
Westbury 

(Westbury East 
Ward) 

Westbury Leigh Community Hall Westbury 
Leigh, Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 3SQ 

No  
 

IJ3 
Westbury 

(Westbury East 
Ward) 

Westbury United Reformed Church 
Church Hall, The Butts, Westbury, 

Wiltshire, BA13 3EU 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
    1      No change. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Organisation in Westbury  
See Appendix F for full details 

 

P
age 179



158 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
No specific examples of where a street votes in two different polling station. It should be noted that if a street is split by a unitary 
division boundary it is not possible to amend this under the scope of this review.  
 

 

P
age 180



159 
 

93 Westbury North – Proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3824 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

IK1 
Westbury 

(Westbury North 
Ward)  

Bell Orchard, Field Close, Westbury BA13 
3AR 

Yes1 
Westbury United Football Club 

Meadow Lane, Westbury, Wiltshire, 
BA13 3AF2 

 

IK2 
Westbury 

(Westbury North 
Ward) 

Westbury Methodist Church Station Road, 
Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 3JL 

Yes1 
Westbury United Football Club 

Meadow Lane, Westbury, Wiltshire, 
BA13 3AF 

 

IK3 
Westbury 

(Westbury North 
Ward) 

Westbury Methodist Church Station Road, 
Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 3JL 

Yes1  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 3 new polling districts. Polling Districts named IK1, IK2 and IK3 to 

better apportion the electors across the polling districts. 
2 Polling station change. Westbury Utd Football Club, BA13 3AF.  
3 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 181



160 
 

Comments from the review:  

 Organisation in Westbury  
See Appendix F for full details 

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
No specific examples of where a street votes in two different polling station. It should be noted that if a street is split by a unitary 
division boundary it is not possible to amend this under the scope of this review.  
 

 

P
age 182



161 
 

94 Westbury West – Proposed changes – Comments received 

 

Electorate       4152 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

IL1 
Westbury 

(Westbury West 
Ward)  

Leigh Park Community Centre Leigh Park 
Way, Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 3FN 

Yes1  
 

IL2 
Westbury 

(Westbury West 
Ward) 

Leigh Park Community Centre Leigh Park 
Way, Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 3FN 

No  
 

IL3 
Westbury 

(Westbury West 
Ward) 

Leigh Park Community Centre Leigh Park 
Way, Westbury, Wiltshire, BA13 3FN 

Yes1  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Boundary change to better apportion electors across the polling districts.  
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Organisation in Westbury  
See Appendix F for full details 

 

P
age 183



162 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
No specific examples of where a street votes in two different polling station. It should be noted that if a street is split by a unitary 
division boundary it is not possible to amend this under the scope of this review.  
 

 

P
age 184



163 
 

95 Wilton – Proposed changes – Comments received 

 

Electorate       3630 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

BI Netherhampton 
Quidhampton Village Hall Lower Road, 
Quidhampton, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 

9AR 
No  

 

BN Quidhampton 
Quidhampton Village Hall Lower Road, 
Quidhampton, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 

9AR 
No  

 

DI Wilton  
Wilton Community Centre West Street, 
Wilton, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 0DJ 

Yes1  
 

DP Wilton 
Wilton Community Centre West Street, 
Wilton, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 0DJ 

Yes1  
 

DQ Wilton 
Wilton Community Centre West Street, 
Wilton, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 0DJ 

Yes1  
 

P
age 185



164 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 All polling districts have been reapportioned to create 2 new polling districts. Polling Districts named DI and DP to better 

apportion the electors across the polling districts. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review:  

 Political Party  
All 3 of the polling stations are in 1 location. DI & DQ are fine in the current location but we would like to see the DP 
reinstated to the primary school where it was and available for the disabled and elderly geographically.  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
 
These three polling districts have voted at Wilton Community Centre since 2017 and no issue has thus far been identified. It is 
therefore deemed as a suitable venue.  

 

P
age 186



165 
 

96 Winsley & Westwood – No proposed changes – Comments received  

 

Electorate       3886 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Chippenham  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

FK1 Limpley Stoke 
Limpley Stoke Village Hall Middle Stoke, 

Limpley Stoke, Wiltshire, BA2 7GF 
No  

 

GB1 Monkton Farleigh 
Monkton Farleigh Village Hall Monkton 
Farleigh, Bradford on Avon, Wiltshire, 

BA15 2QD 
No  

 

GI1 South Wraxall 
South Wraxall Village Hall South Wraxall, 
Bradford on Avon, Wiltshire, BA15 2SE 

No  
 

IP1 Westwood 
Westwood Social Club Orchard Close, 
Lower Westwood, Bradford on Avon, 

Wiltshire, BA15 2AP 
No  

 

IR1 Winsley 
St Nicholas Church Hall Winsley, 

Wiltshire, BA15 2NQ 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 187



166 
 

Comments from the review  

 Elector in BA2 7GF  
The village hall, my existing station is very convenient. (Votes at Limpley Stoke Village Hall)  

 

 

Winsley & Westwood continued on the next page.  

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Melksham and Devizes  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

IQ1 Wingfield 
The Poplars Inn Shop Lane, Wingfield, 

Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 9LN 
No  

 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 188



167 
 

97 Winterslow & Upper Bourne Valley – Proposed changes – No comments received 

 

Electorate       4159 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury 

Future Parliamentary Constituency   Salisbury  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

AC Allington 
Boscombe & District Social Club Tidworth 

Road, Boscombe Village, Salisbury, 
Wiltshire SP4 0AB 

No  
 

AO Cholderton 
Cholderton Village Hall Cholderton, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0DW 
No  

 

BD 
Idmiston (Idmiston 

& Porton Ward)  
Idmiston Parish Memorial Hall Porton, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0LD 
Yes1  

 

BE 
Idmiston (Idmiston 

& Porton Ward) 
Idmiston Parish Memorial Hall Porton, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0LD 
Yes1  

 

BJ Newton Tony 
Newton Tony Memorial Hall Newton Tony, 

Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0HF 
No  

 

DK Firsdown 
The Pavilion Recreation Ground, Middle 

Winterslow, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 1RD 
No  

 

DM1 Winterslow 
The Pavilion Recreation Ground, Middle 

Winterslow, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 1RD 
Yes   

DM2 Winterslow 
Winterslow Village Hall Middleton Road, 

Winterslow, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP5 1PQ 
Yes  

 

P
age 189



168 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 Polling Districts BD and BE merge. The electorate of is BE is 831 and the electorate of BD is 249 electors bringing the total 

electorate for new polling district BD to 1080. New polling district to be named BD. 
2 Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

P
age 190



169 
 

98 Wylye Valley – No proposed changes – Comments received 

 

Electorate       3798 

Current Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

Future Parliamentary Constituency   South West Wiltshire  

The Polling Place will be the whole of the unitary division.  The proposals for alterations to polling districts and polling stations are set 

out below. Where no alterations to polling districts or polling stations are listed below, the current electoral arrangements are deemed 

to be suitable.  

Polling 
District 

Parish/Parish 
Ward Name 

Polling Station 2019 Review 

Proposed 
Polling 
District 
Change 

Polling Station Changed to 

 

EE6 Bishopstrow 
Bishopstrow Village Hall Bishopstrow, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 9HN 
No  

 

EF6 Boyton 
Fane Hall Corton, Warminster, Wiltshire, 

BA12 0SZ 
No  

 

EP1 
Chitterne 

(Chitterne All 
Saints Ward) 

Chitterne Village Hall Chitterne, 
Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 0LG 

No  
 

EP7 
Chitterne 

(Chitterne St Mary 
Ward) 

Chitterne Village Hall Chitterne, 
Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 0LG 

No  
 

EQ1 Codford 
Codford Village Hall Broadleaze, Codford, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 0PP 
No  

 

EQ7 Sherrington 
Codford Village Hall Broadleaze, Codford, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 0PP 
No  

 

FA1 Heytesbury 
The Red Lion Heytesbury, Warminster, 

Wiltshire, BA12 0EA 
No  

 

P
age 191



170 
 

FA7 Knook 
The Red Lion Heytesbury, Warminster, 

Wiltshire, BA12 0EA 
No  

 

FJ6 Kingston Deverill 
Upper Deverills Village Hall Kingston 

Deverill, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 7HG 
No  

 

FJ7 Brixton Deverill 
Upper Deverills Village Hall Kingston 

Deverill, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 7HG 
No  

 

FL1 
Longbridge 

Deverill 

Longbridge Deverill Parish Hall 
Longbridge Deverill Hall, Church Street, 

Longbridge Deverill, Warminster, 
Wiltshire, BA12 7DJ 

No  

 

GD6 Norton Bavant 
Norton Bavant Village Hall Norton Bavant, 

Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 7BB 
No  

 

GL6 Stockton 
Manor Farm Stockton, Warminster, 

Wiltshire, BA12 0SQ 
No  

 

GO1 Sutton Veny 
Sutton Veny Village Hall High Street, 

Sutton Veny, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 
7AP 

No  
 

IA6 Upton Lovell 
Upton Lovell Village Hall Up Street, Upton 
Lovell, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 0JW 

No  
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Comments:  
1 No changes. Comments welcomed on the polling districts and polling stations in the area. 

 

Comments from the review  

 Elector in BA12 0HE  
We need a polling station in this village. Making people go to Codford is very burdensome for those without a car.  
 

 Elector in  BA12 0HW  
We always had our polling station at the Red Lion pub but last time it was moved to Codford 4 miles away. This is not good or 
convient for people. I’d like our polling station returned to the village. We have the pub, the school or church.  
 

 

P
age 192



171 
 

(Acting) Returning Officer Response:  
 
Heytesbury and Knook – there is no change to the polling station. The comments refer to a polling station change to Codford in 
2021 only which was necessary due to Covid restrictions.  

 

 

99 Appendix A  
Response from a Parish Council  

CALNE WITHOUT PARISH COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
Calne Without Parish Council would like to thank Wiltshire Council for consulting with us on polling districts and polling stations within 
our Parish. 
 
We have no comments to make about arrangements for polling stations, which currently seem satisfactory. 
 
We would, however, like to draw your attention to the need for significant changes to polling districts which will be required due to the 
significant changes to parish boundaries arising out of the 2021/22 Community Governance Review, undertaken by Wiltshire Council. 
 
This is due to be implemented in May 2025, with parts of Calne Without Parish Council being transferred to Calne Town Council and 
the Parish Councils of Bremhill, Hilmarton, Compton Bassett, Cherhill and Heddington, and the remainder becoming the new Parish 
of Derry Hill & Studley. 
 
These proposed changes are detailed in full in the following Wiltshire Council document: 
 

Community Governance Review 2021/22 
Final Recommendations of the Electoral Review Committee 

P
age 193



172 
 

October 2022 
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s208706/FInal%20Recommendations%20of%20the%20Community%20Governance%2
0Review.pdf  

 
Polling Districts will require revision to facilitate the town and parish council elections of 2025, reflecting the new town and parish 
warding structures and boundaries. 
 
There is, however, a further complication that Wiltshire Council should be aware of. The Calne Community Neighbourhood Plan is 
currently undergoing a major review. This Neighbourhood Pan currently covers the areas of Calne Town Council and Calne Without 
Parish Council. The updated Neighbourhood Plan is likely to proceed to a referendum in early 2025, and potentially on the same date 
as the May 2025 town and parish council elections. 
 
The new polling district structure therefore needs to be able to facilitate both town and parish council elections to the new boundaries, 
potentially at the same time as facilitating a Neighbourhood Plan referendum reflecting the current boundaries. 
 
Detailed recommendations for each of the current polling districts within Calne Without are detailed in Section 2 below. 
  

P
age 194

https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s208706/FInal%20Recommendations%20of%20the%20Community%20Governance%20Review.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s208706/FInal%20Recommendations%20of%20the%20Community%20Governance%20Review.pdf


173 
 

 
2. DETAILED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Detailed recommendations are detailed below for each of the current Calne Without Parish Council electoral divisions: 
 

 
 
Note: references to “Areas” below relate to the areas defined in the Community Governance Review 2021/22 Final Recommendations 
Report reference above. 
 

P
age 195



174 
 

Current 
Polling 
District 

Recommendation Comments 

MT2 Transfer of Area A from MT2 
(Middle Ward) into Calne Town 
Council division MP2. 

Represents the transfer of the 
Cherhill View development into 
Calne Town Council. 

MU1 Transfer of Area B from MU1 
(West Ward) to Calne TC 
division MO1. 

Represents the transfer of the 
Chilvester Hill development into 
Calne Town Council. 

MQ1 Transfer of Area B from MQ1 
(East Ward) to Calne TC 
division MO2. 

Represents the transfer of the 
Low Lane development into 
Calne Town Council. 

NB1 Minor change only required – 
transfer of a small part of Area 
D1 from NB1 (Pewsham Ward) 
to Bremhill PC division MF1. 

This is a small section of 
Pewsham Ward which contains 
no electors 

MU1 
 

Transfer of substantive part of 
Area D1 from MU1 (West Ward) 
to Bremhill PC within a new 
electoral division. 

The new electoral division would 
allow electors to vote in both 
Bremhill Parish Council elections 
and in a Calne Community 
Neighbourhood Plan 
referendum. 

MQ1 Transfer of Area H2 from MQ1 
(East Ward) to Compton 
Bassett PC within a new 
electoral division. 

The new electoral division would 
allow electors to vote in both 
Compton Bassett Parish Council 
elections and in a Calne 
Community Neighbourhood Plan 
referendum. 

P
age 196



175 
 

Current 
Polling 
District 

Recommendation Comments 

MU1 Transfer of Area I from MU1 
(West Ward) to Hilmarton PC 
division OC1. 

This is a small section of West 
Ward which contains no electors 

MQ1 Transfer of part of Area J from 
MQ1 (East Ward) to Cherhill PC 
within a new electoral 
division to form the new ward 
of Lower Compton. 

This will form the new ward of 
Lower Compton within the future 
Cherhill Parish Council. 

MT1 & 
MT2 

Transfer of parts of Area J, 
representing the ancient parish 
of Blackland, from MT2 and 
MT1 (Middle Ward) into MQ1 
(East Ward). 

MQ1 will then form the future 
Blackland and Calstone Ward of 
the future Cherhill Parish 
Council. 

MT2 Transfer of area to the north-
west of the A3102 Mile Elm 
Road from MT2 (Middle Ward) 
to MV1. 

The north-western part of MT2 is 
to become part of the future 
ward of Bowood and Sandy 
Lane, within the future Derry Hill 
& Studley Parish Council. 

MT2 Transfer of the remainder of 
MT2 into MT1, representing 
Area K. 

The remainder of MT2 (to the 
south-east of the Mile Elm 
Road), together with most of 
MT1, will form part of the future 
ward of Stockley, within 
Heddington Parish Council. 

P
age 197



176 
 

Current 
Polling 
District 

Recommendation Comments 

MV1  Transfer of Area L from 
Bromham division SK1 into 
MV1. 

This is a small administrative 
transfer into what will be the 
ward of Bowood and Sandy 
Lane, within the future Derry Hill 
& Studley Parish Council. 

MU1 Transfer of part of MU1 (West 
Ward), to the south of Church 
Road / Old Road / A4, into MV1. 

This will form part of the future 
ward of Bowood and Sandy 
Lane, within the future Derry Hill 
& Studley Parish Council. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
The future Parish of Derry Hill and Studley will then comprise the following three electoral divisions 
 

 Derry Hill and Studley Ward, comprising the remainder of the MU1 division, following transfers out. 

 Pewsham Ward, comprising the NB1 division, largely unchanged, except for the minor adjustment noted above. 

 Bowood and Sandy Lane Ward, comprising the MV1 division, expanded to include transfers from MU1 (West Ward), MT2 
(Middle Ward) and SK1 (Bromham). 

 
The newly created wards within Heddington and Cherhill Parish Councils will be drawn from: 
 

 Stockley Ward of Heddington PC, taken from the former Middle Ward divisions of MT1 and MT2 after transfers. 

 Blackland & Calstone Ward of Cherhill PC, taken from the former East Ward division of MQ1. 

 Lower Compton Ward of Cherhill PC, requiring a new electoral division. 
 
Additional electoral divisions will be required to facilitate a referendum on the Calne Community Neighbourhood Plan: 

 Within Bremhill Parish Council, covering Area D1 taken from the former West Ward. 

 Within Compton Bassett Parish Council, covering Area H1 taken from the former East Ward. 

P
age 198



177 
 

 

99 Appendix B (Wilcot, Huish & Oare)  

Good evening, 
 
The parish council appreciates that the review process has remembered their previous comments about this matter, made during 
the 2019/2020 Community Governance Review. 
 
Since then, of course, the parameters of decision-making have changed for the parish, with the introduction of charges for all 
electoral costs to be borne by the parish rather than by Wiltshire Council. 
 
Ideally, if the costs are not prohibitive, the parish council would prefer that two polling stations are operated, with both Wilcot and 
Oare Village Halls open to voters; this would enhance access and facilitate participation in the electoral process for those unable to 
drive, as well as facilitating walking and cycling for all voters in line with Wiltshire Council's environmental strategy. 
 
If the costs are prohibitive, the parish council would, as a second-best option, ask for alternating polling stations, in order to share 
the burden of travel equally between parishioners. 
 
The parish council seeks to know whether the merger to create one polling district restricts these options. In which case, the parish 
council would ask that the merger is reconsidered. 
 
The parish council would appreciate further discussion and an understanding of the costs before any decisions are taken by 
Wiltshire Council, please. 
 
The parish council wonders whether Wiltshire Council would be willing to negotiate a deal, whereby the electoral costs to the 
parish could be offset by the environmental benefits to Wiltshire of operating two stations. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
Clerk, Wilcot, Huish and Oare Parish Council. 
 

P
age 199



178 
 

100  Appendix C (Wiltshire County)  
Email from an Elector in Wiltshire  

Hello, 

My comments do not relate to any particular polling place, they note experiences people from the affected groups have frequently reported across the 

country. This indicates that the training of Polling Officers should explicitly include these scenarios so they can react correctly and appropriately. (And if it 

already does, that they should be stressed or given more prominence so that the Polling Officers are more aware of these situations.) 

Regarding the LGBTQ+ Community; If someone has an ID that does not match their gender presentation – Say someone wearing make up, with a dress and 

long hair had an ID with an M marker and the name Steve – they are frequently challenged on the basis that this is not their real ID. In reality there are a host 

of reasons why someone may not have wanted or been able to get an ID that matches the way they prefer to present themselves. 

Even if a Poll worker is aware of trans, non-binary and gender non-conforming people, they may feel entitled to ask intrusive questions to confirm the person 

is 'really trans.' This puts the person in the awkward position of refusing to answer, and potentially being turned away, or having to disclose private 

information. 

In addition, some polling places are in old or hard to reach buildings, with only a few parking spaces. Even if there is a ramp/a lack of steps, getting to the 

building itself can be an issue for those who use wheelchairs or have other mobility challenges. Narrow doorways and corridors can still be a barrier to 

wheelchair users even if the building is overall considered 'accessible'. Ideally someone who uses a wheelchair would have the final say over whether or not a 

building was considered suitable. 

Another consideration is that if the polling place is busy, there are not always chairs available for those who cannot stand for long periods and who are 

therefore unable to wait if there is a queue. 

Also those with speech or mental difficulties are sometimes challenged because it is believed they don't or aren't capable of understanding what they are 

voting for, and therefore do not have the right to vote. They are then mistakenly prevented from exercising their legal right. 

Then there are those from immigrant communities, who may not speak English fluently, who nevertheless have the right to vote, either in Local or National 

elections. Sometimes they are challenged based on the mistaken assumption that such a person could not be a citizen, or should not have the right to vote. 

Their English skills mean they are unable to dispute the Polling Officer and so are wrongly turned away. 

If a person has encountered one of these issues previously or knows someone who has, it can discourage them from making another attempt to vote. 

Therefore, ideally, you would make it clear in your advertising/information that the issues have been considered and you are actively trying to avoid them in 

P
age 200



179 
 

future. In addition, polling paces and voting information should make it clear where people can address any queries or complaints if they do have an issue 

with a Polling place or Officer. 

Many Thanks for your time 

Elector Name Redacted.  

 

101  Appendix D (Warminster North & Rural)  
Dear Election Team, 

You have invited comments from councillors familiar with the polling stations and polling districts within each Unitary Division. 

I refer to specifically Warminster IC1 and IC2.  

IC2 is situated in the Community Centre, Firbank Crescent within the Garrison near residential quarters.  

Although not ‘behind the wire’ it serves a minority of nearby ‘service’ voters and is not a conducive location for the much larger number of 

voters from IC2 to travel there to attend. 

Indeed, with the rightful secure areas within the garrison camp, it can be somewhat intimidating and confusing to find. 

I suggest that the following suggestion are considered: 

 The polling station is relocated to withing IC2 (Portway Estate – Medilcot House) 

 An additional polling station is set up in IC2 (as above) 

 Polling station in IE2 Warminster Civic Centre is set up to jointly receive voters from IC2 (which would be nearer to travel) 
I hope that you will receive these comments in the constructive manor intended but happy to discuss further. 

 

102 Appendix E (Harnham West)  
Email from Elected Official  

P
age 201



180 
 

The community lounge has been used since the Junior school ceased being used, due to the TRO coming into being in the road in around 2006, 

which bans non permit holders. The lounge is also within the old sheltered scheme and closer to many who are likely not to bother to vote. It is 

also owned by wc, so there should not be any cost in hire fees. 

I was advised that the lounge was not used during covid and should return to use as a polling station.  

 

103 Appendix F (Westbury)  
Dear Sir / Madam 

At the Policy & Resources Committee that took place on Monday 2nd Oct 2023, the committee discussed the Polling District and Polling Place 

Review 2023.  

Following much debate, the members reached outcome below: 

1. It does not seem sensible that residents living in the same street are required to visit different a polling station. This should be streamlined. 
2. You will be aware the town council is now required to pay for their elections. Will the town council now have any control over the process. 

For example, the number of polling stations, how these are manned, and staff involved and where savings could be made.  
Town Clerk MIWFM 

 

104 Appendix G (Pewsey Vale West)  
Email from an Elected Official 

A consultation document came out about reviewing polling station locations,   Hilcott identified the village hall, it does not exist being demolished, 

I recommended either Woodborough Parish Room or Rushall village Hall. I said I would consult with the PC to identify their preferred polling 

station as they are about the same distance from Hilcott and I would provide the polling station consultation team with the outcome so that they 

could update their records. 

 

105 Appendix H (Purton)  
Email from an Elected Official  

P
age 202



181 
 

I have raised the issue before about the locality of a polling station for the residents of Ridgeway Farm and Mouldon View as Purton Village Hall 

is not easily accessible for these residents.  Not only is there limited parking at the Village Hall, but there is no public transport and the only direct 

road to the village is narrow and IF all the residents did decide to drive out to vote I can see there could be a lot of vehicle conflict on the bends 

around the church. 

Ideally if residents had postal votes this would help but it is not what everyone wants. 

Hence these 1000 homes need a more localised venue to go and vote.  There is a primary school on the estate at Ridgeway Farm and across 

the road at Peatmoor a pub and community centre.   

 

 

P
age 203



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Reference   Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Requested from the Electoral Review 

Committee

1 Aldbourne & Ramsbury
 No proposed 

changes
Comments 
received 

No Change, Approval Requested

2 Alderbury & Whiteparish
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

3 Amesbury East & Bulford
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

4 Amesbury South
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

5 Amesbury West
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

6 Avon Valley
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

7 Bowerhill
 Proposed 
Changes

Comments 
received 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

8 Box & Colerne
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

9 Bradford-on-Avon North 
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

10 Bradford-on-Avon South 
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

11 Brinkworth
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

NX1 has 736 electors. ON1 has 296 electors. Having reviewed the polling stations 
and comments from the review, the (A)RO would be satisfied to retain the existing 
polling station at Great Somerford, the Walter Powell School Community Room. 
The proposed change to NV1 will remain as no comments were received to the 
contrary

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

12
Bromham Rowde & 
Roundway

 Proposed changes
No comments 

received 
Approval Requested, Polling District Change

13 By Brook
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

14 Calne Central
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

15 Calne Chilvester & Abberd
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

St Edmunds Catholic Parish Hall is not a suitable venue to use as a polling station 
due to accessibility issues including steep steps inside the hall. The (A)RO 
acknowledges that the proposed polling station is outside of the unitary division 
there are no other suitable alternatives. Any suggested venues will be taken into 
consideration. 

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

16 Calne North
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

P
age 205



Reference   Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Requested from the Electoral Review 

Committee

17 Calne Rural
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 

The (ARO) is aware of the Community Governance Review and changes proposed 
for 2025 elections. A specific review of polling districts for the Calne Rural area will 
be conducted in 2024 as confirmation is pending from the LGBCE regarding the re-
alignment of Unitary Division areas to make the boundaries coterminous. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

18 Calne South
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 

The comment received was not specific to a particular polling station. No changes 
were proposed for this division. 
As a result of the polling station visit Marden House no longer wish to be available 
for use as a polling station. (A)RO will consider an alternative venue and will take 
into account the comments above. 

No Change, Approval Requested

19
Chippenham Cepen Park & 
Derriads

 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

20
Chippenham Cepen Park & 
Hunters Moon

No proposed 
changes

 No comments 
received

No Change, Approval Requested

21 Chippenham Hardenhuish
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

22
Chippenham Hardens & 
Central

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The Unitary boundary changes in 2021 mean that Ricardo Road now falls under the 
Chippenham Harden & Central. Whilst appreciative of the comment that the 
Bowling Club is closer for this street, in order to keep the polling station within the 
unitary division and also convenient for other electors in QJ3 the polling station will 
remain at St Paul’s Church Hall. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

23
Chippenham Lowden & 
Rowden

 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

24 Chippenham Monkton
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

25 Chippenham Pewsham
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

26 Chippenham Sheldon
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

27 Corsham Ladbrook
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

28 Corsham Pickwick
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Following the response from the Town Council, the polling district NP1 will be 
retained and Potley Community Centre will remain the polling station. NP1 and NP2 

will not merge. The existing NP1 will be re-named as NP3. 
Approval Requested, Polling District Change

29 Corsham Without
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

30 Cricklade & Latton
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The elector will be contacted with details of what the constituency change means 
outside of this review. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

P
age 206



Reference   Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Requested from the Electoral Review 

Committee

31 Devizes East
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

32 Devizes North
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

33 Devizes Rural West
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

34 Devizes South
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

35 Downton & Ebble Valley
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 
No Change, Approval Requested

36 Durrington
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 
No Change, Approval Requested

37 Ethandune
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

38 Fovant & Chalke Valley
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

39 Hilperton
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

40 Holt
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

41 Kington
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

42 Laverstock
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

43 Ludgershall North & Rural
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

44 Lyneham
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 
No Change, Approval Requested

45 Malmesbury
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

46 Marlborough East
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

47 Marlborough West
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

48 Melksham East
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The current polling station arrangements are deemed to be suitable. The Water 
Meadow has been visited in the past but is deemed not to be suitable as there is no 
separate function room. Schools are only used as polling stations where no other 
suitable venues can be identified or in exceptional circumstances. The (A)RO 
welcomes further suggestions of polling stations in the area. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

P
age 207



Reference   Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Requested from the Electoral Review 

Committee

49 Melksham Forest
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Melksham Welcome Hall is no longer available. An alternative venue within the 
unitary division will be sought. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

50 Melksham South
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

51
Melksham Without North & 
Shurnhold

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

52
Melksham Without West & 
Rural

 No proposed 
changes

 Comments 
received 

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

53 Mere
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

54 Minety
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

55 Nadder Valley
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

56
Old Sarum & Lower Bourne 
Valley

 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

57 Pewsey
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 
No Change, Approval Requested

58 Pewsey Vale East
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

59 Pewsey Vale West
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The polling station Hilcott Village Hall identified for XB1 (North Newnton) has 372 
electors. Polling station visits and comments from the review identify that the polling 
station Hilcott Village Hall has been demolished. 
Replacement polling station is Rushall Village Hall Rushall, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 
6EN. This polling station is better suited than the parish rooms due to having more 
parking spaces and better access facilities. 

The Parish Council’s comments regarding ZE1, ZE2 and ZE3 are noted. These 
polling districts historically vote at Oare Village Hall and no issue has thus far been 
identified. Oare Village Hall is deemed a suitable venue for a polling station. 

Merging the polling districts streamlines the administration of the poll without impact 
to the electorate. 

The cost of the administration of polls does not fall under the scope of this review 
however it should be noted a second polling station would be a greater financial 
burden. The total electorate is 446 for the combined polling districts and it is not 
deemed that a second venue is necessary. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

60 Purton
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received

A polling station (Cotswolds Rise Care Home) has been identified within the new 
polling district created (PJ4) 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

P
age 208



Reference   Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Requested from the Electoral Review 

Committee

61 Redlynch & Landford
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

62 Royal Wootton Bassett East
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

63 Royal Wootton Bassett North
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

64
Royal Wootton Bassett South 
& West

 No proposed 
changes

 No comments 
received

No Change, Approval Requested

65 Salisbury Bemerton Heath
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

66
Salisbury Fisherton & 
Bemerton Village

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The elector will be contacted. The comment does not fall within the scope of this 
review. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

67 Salisbury Harnham East
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

68 Salisbury Harnham West
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Further to comments from the review and a recent parish by-election where the 
Community Lounge was used, the current polling arrangements are deemed to be 
suitable. 

It should be noted that Harnham Free Church has changed it’s name recently to 
Trinity Church Centre 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

69 Salisbury Milford
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

70 Salisbury St Edmund`s
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

71
Salisbury St Francis & 
Stratford

 No proposed 
changes

 No comments 
received

No Change, Approval Requested

72 Salisbury St Paul`s
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

77 Tidworth North & West
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

74 Southwick
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 
No Change, Approval Requested

75 The Lavingtons
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

76
Tidworth East & Ludgershall 
South

No proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Tidworth Community Centre construction is expected to be completed by the next 
scheduled elections in May 2024. 

No Change, Approval Requested

80 Trowbridge Adcroft
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

P
age 209



Reference   Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Requested from the Electoral Review 

Committee

78 Till Valley
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

79 Tisbury
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Hinton Hall is deemed to be suitable and accessible to the electorate. Approval Requested, Polling Station Change Only

81 Trowbridge Central
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

82 Trowbridge Drynham
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Following a visit to Holbrook School, the polling station venue is deemed to be 
suitable and will therefore be retained.  

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

83 Trowbridge Grove
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

St Johns Church Hall is deemed to be a suitable venue and accessible within the 
division. No suitable additional venue has been identified however suggestions in 
the future will be welcomed. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

85 Trowbridge Park
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

84 Trowbridge Lambrok
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

87 Urchfont & Bishops Cannings
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

86 Trowbridge Paxcroft
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

88 Warminster Broadway
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

91 Warminster West
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

89 Warminster East
 No proposed 

changes
 No comments 

received
No Change, Approval Requested

93 Westbury North
 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

No specific examples of where a street votes in two different polling station. It 
should be noted that if a street is split by a unitary division boundary it is not 
possible to amend this under the scope of this review. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

94 Westbury West
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

No specific examples of where a street votes in two different polling station. It 
should be noted that if a street is split by a unitary division boundary it is not 
possible to amend this under the scope of this review. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

92 Westbury East
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 

No specific examples of where a street votes in two different polling station. It 
should be noted that if a street is split by a unitary division boundary it is not 
possible to amend this under the scope of this review. 

No Change, Approval Requested

P
age 210



Reference   Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Requested from the Electoral Review 

Committee

95 Wilton
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

These three polling districts have voted at Wilton Community Centre since 2017 
and no issue has thus far been identified. It is therefore deemed as a suitable 
venue. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

97
Winterslow & Upper Bourne 
Valley

 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

73 Sherston
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

There does not appear to be sufficient need to maintain two polling districts 
and polling stations within the Parish of Luckington. The electorate of the 
parish is 522. 

It is acknowledged that the polling station for OO1 is convenient for the 83 
electors in Alderton however, Luckington Village Hall is situated centrally 
within the Parish. The two Village Halls are approximately 1.1 miles away 
from each other.

It is therefore deemed that the original proposal is upheld. 

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

96 Winsley & Westwood
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 
No Change, Approval Requested

90 Warminster North & Rural
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The minor boundary change proposal between IC1 and IC2 has been revoked 
as it is unnecessary. 

The polling station for Hollybush Road (IC2) is currently Warminster 
Garrison, not the Cricket club. 

The comment regarding IC2 voting at the Warminster Garrison would mean 
that electors would be voting outside their unitary division which would 
require approval the designation of the polling place to be the polling station. 
The alternative polling station would be Warminster Civic Centre.

Approval Requested, Polling District Change

98 Wylye Valley
 No proposed 

changes
 Comments 

received 

Heytesbury and Knook – there is no change to the polling station. The comments 
refer to a polling station change to Codford in 2021 only which was necessary due 
to Covid restrictions. 

No Change, Approval Requested

P
age 211



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Referen
ce 

  Ward Changes? Comments? (A)RO Comments from the review 
Action Needed 

from ERC 

11 Brinkworth
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

NX1 has 736 electors. ON1 has 296 electors. 
Having reviewed the polling stations and 
comments from the review, the (A)RO would be 
satisfied to retain the existing polling station at 
Great Somerford, the Walter Powell School 
Community Room. The proposed change to NV1 
will remain as no comments were received to the 
contrary

Approval Requested, 
Polling Station 
Change Only

15
Calne 
Chilvester & 
Abberd

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

St Edmunds Catholic Parish Hall is not a suitable 
venue to use as a polling station due to 
accessibility issues including steep steps inside the 
hall. The (A)RO acknowledges that the proposed 
polling station is outside of the unitary division 
there are no other suitable alternatives. Any 
suggested venues will be taken into consideration. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling Station 
Change Only

17 Calne Rural
 No 

proposed 
changes

 Comments 
received 

The (ARO) is aware of the Community Governance 
Review and changes proposed for 2025 elections. 
A specific review of polling districts for the Calne 
Rural area will be conducted in 2024 as 
confirmation is pending from the LGBCE regarding 
the re-alignment of Unitary Division areas to make 
the boundaries coterminous. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

P
age 213



18
Calne 
South

 No 
proposed 
changes

 Comments 
received 

The comment received was not specific to a 
particular polling station. No changes were 
proposed for this division. 
As a result of the polling station visit Marden 
House no longer wish to be available for use as a 
polling station. (A)RO will consider an alternative 
venue and will take into account the comments 
above. 

No Change, 
Approval Requested

21
Chippenha
m 
Hardenhuis

 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

22
Chippenha
m Hardens 
& Central

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The Unitary boundary changes in 2021 mean that 
Ricardo Road now falls under the Chippenham 
Harden & Central. Whilst appreciative of the 
comment that the Bowling Club is closer for this 
street, in order to keep the polling station within the 
unitary division and also convenient for other 
electors in QJ3 the polling station will remain at St 
Paul’s Church Hall. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

28
Corsham 
Pickwick

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Following the response from the Town Council, the 
polling district NP1 will be retained and Potley 

Community Centre will remain the polling station. 
NP1 and NP2 will not merge. The existing NP1 will 

be re-named as NP3. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

30
Cricklade & 
Latton

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The elector will be contacted with details of what 
the constituency change means outside of this 
review. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

P
age 214



48
Melksham 
East

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The current polling station arrangements are 
deemed to be suitable. The Water Meadow has 
been visited in the past but is deemed not to be 
suitable as there is no separate function room. 
Schools are only used as polling stations where no 
other suitable venues can be identified or in 
exceptional circumstances. The (A)RO welcomes 
further suggestions of polling stations in the area. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

49
Melksham 
Forest

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Melksham Welcome Hall is no longer available. An 
alternative venue within the unitary division will be 
sought. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

P
age 215



59
Pewsey 
Vale West

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The polling station Hilcott Village Hall identified for 
XB1 (North Newnton) has 372 electors. Polling 
station visits and comments from the review 
identify that the polling station Hilcott Village Hall 
has been demolished. 
Replacement polling station is Rushall Village Hall 
Rushall, Pewsey, Wiltshire, SN9 6EN. This polling 
station is better suited than the parish rooms due 
to having more parking spaces and better access 
facilities. 

The Parish Council’s comments regarding ZE1, 
ZE2 and ZE3 are noted. These polling districts 
historically vote at Oare Village Hall and no issue 
has thus far been identified. Oare Village Hall is 
deemed a suitable venue for a polling station. 

Merging the polling districts streamlines the 
administration of the poll without impact to the 
electorate. 

The cost of the administration of polls does not fall 
under the scope of this review however it should be 
noted a second polling station would be a greater 
financial burden. The total electorate is 446 for the 
combined polling districts and it is not deemed that 
a second venue is necessary. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

60 Purton
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received

A polling station (Cotswolds Rise Care Home) has 
been identified within the new polling district 
created (PJ4) 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

P
age 216



66
Salisbury 
Fisherton & 
Bemerton 

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The elector will be contacted. The comment does 
not fall within the scope of this review. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

68
Salisbury 
Harnham 
West

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Further to comments from the review and a recent 
parish by-election where the Community Lounge 
was used, the current polling arrangements are 
deemed to be suitable. 

It should be noted that Harnham Free Church has 
changed it’s name recently to Trinity Church 
Centre 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

76

Tidworth 
East & 
Ludgershall 
South

No proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Tidworth Community Centre construction is 
expected to be completed by the next scheduled 
elections in May 2024. 

No Change, 
Approval Requested

79 Tisbury
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

Hinton Hall is deemed to be suitable and 
accessible to the electorate. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling Station 
Change Only

82
Trowbridge 
Drynham

 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

Following a visit to Holbrook School, the polling 
station venue is deemed to be suitable and will 
therefore be retained.  

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

83
Trowbridge 
Grove

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

St Johns Church Hall is deemed to be a suitable 
venue and accessible within the division. No 
suitable additional venue has been identified 
however suggestions in the future will be 
welcomed. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

93
Westbury 
North

 Proposed 
Changes

 No comments 
received

No specific examples of where a street votes in two 
different polling station. It should be noted that if a 
street is split by a unitary division boundary it is not 
possible to amend this under the scope of this 
review. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

P
age 217



94
Westbury 
West

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

No specific examples of where a street votes in two 
different polling station. It should be noted that if a 
street is split by a unitary division boundary it is not 
possible to amend this under the scope of this 
review. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

92
Westbury 
East

 No 
proposed 
changes

 Comments 
received 

No specific examples of where a street votes in two 
different polling station. It should be noted that if a 
street is split by a unitary division boundary it is not 
possible to amend this under the scope of this 
review. 

No Change, 
Approval Requested

95 Wilton
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

These three polling districts have voted at Wilton 
Community Centre since 2017 and no issue has 
thus far been identified. It is therefore deemed as a 
suitable venue. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

73 Sherston
 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

There does not appear to be sufficient need to 
maintain two polling districts and polling 
stations within the Parish of Luckington. The 
electorate of the parish is 522. 

It is acknowledged that the polling station for 
OO1 is convenient for the 83 electors in 
Alderton however, Luckington Village Hall is 
situated centrally within the Parish. The two 
Village Halls are approximately 1.1 miles away 
from each other.

It is therefore deemed that the original proposal 
is upheld. 

Approval Requested, 
Polling District 

Change

P
age 218



90
Warminste
r North & 
Rural

 Proposed 
Changes

 Comments 
received 

The minor boundary change proposal between 
IC1 and IC2 has been revoked as it is 
unnecessary. 

The polling station for Hollybush Road (IC2) is 
currently Warminster Garrison, not the Cricket 
club. 

The comment regarding IC2 voting at the 
Warminster Garrison would mean that electors 
would be voting outside their unitary division 
which would require approval the designation 
of the polling place to be the polling station. 
The alternative polling station would be 
Warminster Civic Centre.

98
Wylye 
Valley

 No 
proposed 
changes

 Comments 
received 

Heytesbury and Knook – there is no change to the 
polling station. The comments refer to a polling 
station change to Codford in 2021 only which was 
necessary due to Covid restrictions. 

P
age 219



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire Council 
 
Electoral Review Committee 
 
22 November 2023 

 
Parish Name Change Review 

Purpose 

1. To consider proposals to change the name of the parish of Lea & Cleverton. 

Background 

2. Changing the name of a parish or parish council can be done through a Community 

Governance Review process in accordance with the Local Government and Public 

Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

 

3. However, such a change may also be progressed under s.75 of the Local Government 

Act 1972. 

 

4. As the latter would be a simpler process in terms of structure, consultation and decision, 

the Committee at its meeting on 21 September 2021 resolved that where a request was 

received solely regarding a parish name change, the s.75 process would be followed  

 

5. This report relates to requests from the parish of Lea & Cleverton, which is located east 

of Malmesbury, within the Electoral Division of Brinkworth. 

Main Considerations 

6. Lea & Cleverton Parish Council requested that the name of the parish be changed to 

Lea, Garsdon, & Cleverton Parish Council. The reason for the request was: 
 

To properly represent the three habited areas that make up our parish 
 

7. In order to change the name of a parish, a decision would be required by Full Council, 

who would then notify the Secretary of State, Director General of the Ordnance Survey, 

and the Registrar General, along with a parish name change order.  
 

8. There are no specific consultation requirements where a change of parish name is 

being considered under s.75, only proscribed notifications after the event as detailed 

above. 
 

9. However, the Council must have reasonable grounds for making a change that has 

been proposed by a parish council. On this basis Lea & Cleverton Parish Council were 

informed on 19 October 2023 that an online survey had been set up to seek any local 

views, with a request this be circulated in the community. The Members of Malmesbury 

Area Board were also contacted on 23 October 2023. The council’s webpage on 

reviews was updated to include the name change survey. 

 

10. S.75 allows the Council to change the name of a parish at the request of a parish 

council (or parish meeting if there is no council). This means that the Council may only 

approve or not approve that suggested name, and cannot substitute some other 

Page 221

Agenda Item 7



proposal. For instance, should a new suggestion arise as a result of a survey, unless 

the parish council had indicated formal consent for that alternative proposal. 
 

11. 1 response was received to the parish council’s proposal. This was in favour, stating the 

proposed name was more inclusive.  
 

12. The Committee has recommended, and Council approved, name changes in the past 

where no responses were received. 

Safeguarding Implications 

13. There are no safeguarding implications. 

Public Health Implications 

14. There are no public health implications. 

Procurement Implications 

15. There are no procurement implications. 

Risk Assessment 

16. There are no risk issues arising from this report. 

Equalities Implications 

17. There are no equalities implications. 

Environmental and Climate Change Implications 

18. There are no environmental implications. 

Workforce Implications 

19. There are no workforce implications. 

Financial Implications 

20. There are no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

21. This report is consistent with the requirements of s.75 of the Local Government Act 

1972.  

Options  

22. The Committee may recommend that Full Council approve the proposed name changes 

for the parishes as listed, decline to make any recommendation to Full Council at this 

time, or seek consent of the parish council to recommend an alternative name to Full 

Council if appropriate. 

Proposal 

23. To consider whether to recommend Full Council approve the following name changes: 
 

1) The Parish of Lea & Cleverton be changed to the Parish of Lea, Garsdon, & Cleverton 

 

Perry Holmes – Director, Legal and Governance  

Page 222



Report Author: Kieran Elliott, Democracy Manager (Democratic Services), 01225 

718504, kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk   

Appendices 
None 
 
Background Papers 

None 

Page 223

mailto:kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	6 Polling District and Polling Place Review
	Appendix A - Proposed polling arrangements following the public consultation
	Appendix B UD Summary
	Appendix B RO Responses Summary

	7 Parish Name Change Review

